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Board of School Direcfors
Allentown School District
Allentown, Pennsylvania

Report on the Financial Statemenis

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental aclivities, the business-type
dctivities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Allentown Schooi District {"the District”), Allentown, Pennsylvania, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 20146, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
District's basic financial statements as listed in the fable of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financlal Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
dccordance with accounting principles generally accepled in the United States of America; this includes
the design, Implementation, and maintenance of infernal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material missiatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial staiements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained In Government Audifing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. The financial siatements of the discrefely presented component
unit were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial stafements
are free from material missiatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain cudit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial stafements. The procedures selected depend on the cuditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether clue to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers infernal control relevant to the Dishlct's preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements In order to design audit procedures that are appropriaie
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Board of School Directors
Allentown School District

in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's
internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
Appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present falrdy, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely
presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund Information of the
Allentown School District, Allentown, Pennsylvania, as of June 30, 201 6, and the respective changes in its
financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, and the budgetary comparison statement of
the general fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Change in Accounting Principle

As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, in fiscal vear 2016, the Distict adopted new
accounting guidance, GASB Statement No. 72, “Fair Value Measurement and Application.” This statement
addresses accounting and financial reporting issues related 1o fair value measurements. Our opinion is
not modified with respect to this matter. ‘

Other Matters
Required Supplemeniary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 15, the schedule of the District's and Library’s proportioncte
share of the net pension liability on page 58 and the schedule of District and Library contributions on page
59 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmentai Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the Information for conslstency with management’s responses to our inquiries,
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufiicient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.
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Other information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District's basic financial statements. The combining nonmaijor governmental fund financial
statements on pages 60 and 61 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards on
pages 70 - 73 Is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulafions (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requiremenis
for Federal Awards, and also is not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining nonmajor govemmental fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate direclly tc the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information
has been subjected fo the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financlal statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial stalements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Information is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Repoiting Required by Government Auditing Standards

in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our repornt dated January 30,
2017, on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
repotting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not fo provide an opinion on intermnal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Sfandards in considering the District's internal conirol over
financial reporting and compliance.

6WM¢@M3LLP

BARBACANE, THORNTON & COMPANY LLP



ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - UNAUDITED
JUNE 30, 2016

INTRODUCTION

The discussion and analysis of the financial petformance of the Allentown School District ("the District”)
provides an overall review of the District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. The
intent of this discussion and analysis is fo look at the financial performance as a whole; however, readers
also should review the notes to the basic financial statements to enhance thelr understanding of the
Disttict's financial performance.

The Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") is a component of the reporfing model adopted by
the Govermmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB') in ifs Statement No. 34, "Basic Financial
Statements - and the Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Govemnments." Certain
comparative information between the current year and the prior year is required to be presented in the
MD&A.

MISSION STATEMENT AND VISION

¢ Mission — To provide safe, rigorous, and engaging educational experiences that prepare all
sfudents to excel in leaming and life.

. Vision — The Allentown School District's Pathways to Success vision provides every student in the
Allenfown School District with an individuadlized academic plan that leads to graduation and
success in post-secondary education or a job paying a family-sustaining wage.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

As of June 30, 2016, the District's General Fund reported a positive accumulated fund balance in the
amount of $31,347,291, or 11.79 percent of the District's General Fund fotal expenditure budget for 2015-
2016, down from 14.44 percent for the previous year.

The District's fotal entity-wide revenues during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 were $281,186,205.
Of this tofal, combined faxes, general subsidies, and other general revenues accounted for
$210,364,737, or 74.81 percent, and program-specific revenues in the form of charges for services and
grants accounted for $70,821,468, or the remaining 25.19 percent.

The District had $267,065,369 in expenses related to governmental activities: $60,147,164 of these
expenses were offset by program-specific revenues for services and operating granfs.

The District did not receive stafe and federal funding until the second half of the fiscal yvear due fo the
Pennsylvania state budget impasse. In order fo ensure the continuous operation of the District, the District
entered into an agreement for a Tax and Revenue Anticipation Note (“TRAN"), Series of 2015, avaliable in
one or more drawdowns up fo a maximum aggregate principal amount of $50,000,000. The only
drawdown occurred on the signing date of the agreement, December 15, 2015, in the amount of
$1,000,000. This amount was paid back in January 2016 when the District received iis first installment of
funds from the state. The TRAN was terminated in January 2016.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - UNAUDITED (CONTD)
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of a serles of financic! statements that are organized so that the reader can
understand the District as a financial whole and, also, as an entire operating entity. The financial
statements consist of three parts: 1) Management's Discussion and Andlysis; 2) basic financial statements:
and 3) supplementaiy Information, The basic financial statemenis include two kinds of siatements that
present different views of the District. The first two statements are entity-wide financial statements — the
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activifies. These stalements provide both long-term and
short-term information about the District's overall financial status.

The remaining statements are fund financlatl statements that focus on individual parts of the District’s
operafions in more detail than the entity-wide statements. The govermnmental funds statements tell how
generally the District’s services were financed in the shor-term as well as what remains for fulure
spending. The fund financial statements also look at the District’s most significant funds with all other non-
maijor funds presented in fotal In one column. In the case of the District, the General Fund is by far the
most significant fund. Proprietary fund statements offer short-term and long-term financial information
about the activities that the District operates like a business. For the District, this is its Food Service Fund.
Fiduciary fund staterents provide information about financial rekationships whetre the District dcts solely as
a frustee or agent for the benefit of others, to whom the resources in question belong. For the District, this
is its Student Activities Fund, the IRC Section 125 Fund, and the Private-Purpose Trust Fund.

The financlal statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial
statements and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of supplementary
information that further explains and reports the financlal siatements,

Figure A-1 shows how the required paris of the Financlal Section are aranged and relate fo one another;
Figure A-1

Required Components of Allentown School District's
Financial Report

1
! _ A
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Figure A-2 summarizes the maijor features of the financial stafements, including the portion of the program
they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this overview section of the MD&A
explains the structure and contents of each of the statements.

Figure A-2

Major Features of Allentown School District’s
Entity-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Fund Statements

Changes in Fund
Balances.

Changes in Fund Net
Position; Statement of
Cash Flows.

Entity-wide Statements Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds Fidueiary Funds
Scope Entire District (except The activities of the District ;| Activities the District Instances in which the
fiduciary funds). that are not proprietary or | operates similar to private 1 District is the trustee or
fiduciary, such as business — Food Services. : agent to someone else's
education, administration, resources — Scholarship
and community services, and Student Activity
B N . Funds. B
Required Statement of Net Balance Sheei; Statement ! Statement of Fund Net Staterment of Fiduciary
financial Position; Statement of of Revenues, Position; Statement of Net Position; Statement
statements Activities. Expenditures, and Revenues, Expenses, and : of Changes in Fiduciary

Net Position.

Accounting basis
and
measurement
focus

Accrual accounting and
economic resources
focus.

Modified accrual
accounting and current
financial resources focus.

Accrual accounting and
aconomic resources focus.

Accrual accounting and
economic resources
focus.

Type of
information

All assets and deferred
outflows and liabilities
and deferred inflows,
both financial and capital,
and short-term and long-
term.

Only assets and deferred
outflows expected fo be
used up, and liabilities and
deferred inflows that come
due during the year or
soon thereafier; no capital
assets included,

All assets and deferrad
outflows and liabilities and
deferred inflows, both
financial and capital, and
short-term and long-term.

both short-term and long-
term.

Type of
inflow-outflow
information

All revenues and
expenses during year,
regardless of when cash
is received or paid.

Revenues for which cash
is received during or soon
after the end of the year;
expenditures when goods
or services have been
received and payment is
due during the year or

soon theraafter.

All revenues and expenses
during the year, regardless
of when cash is received or
paid.

All revenues and
expenses during the year,
regardless of when cash
is recelved or paid.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - UNAUDITED (CONTD)
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OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Entity-wide Statements

The entity-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting methods
similar 1o those used by private-sector companies. The Statement of Net Position includes ali of the
govetnment’s assets, deferted outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources. All of
the current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Activities regardless
of when cash is received or paid.

The iwo entity-wide stalements repott the District's net position and how it has changed. Net position,
the difference between the District's assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources, is one way to measure the Districi’s financial health or position.

Over time, Increases ot decreases in the District's net position is an Indication of whether its financial
health is Improving or deteriorating, respectively.

To assess the overall health of the District, the reader needs to consider additional factors, such as
projected growth in the Distiict's property values due to the extensive downiown development, as well
as the future riverfront projects, and the projected changes in enroliment of students.

The entity-wide financial stafements of the District are divided info two categories:

. Governmental Activities — All of the District’s basic services are included here, such as instruction,
administration, and community services. Local tax revenues, state and federal subsidies, and
grants finance most of these activities.

*  Business-type activities - The District operates a food service operation and charges fees to staff,
students, and visltors {o help defray the costs of the food sarvice operation.

Impact of GASB Stafements No. 68 and No. 71

During the 2014-2015 fiscal year, the District implemented Governnment Accounting Standards Board
("GASB”) Statement No. 68, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions,” and GASB Statement
No. 71, “Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent 1o the Measurement Date - An
Amendment of GASB Statement No. 68." The purpose of these statements is to improve the
transparency, consistency, and comparability of the pension Information reported by state and local
govemments (e.g. school disiricts).

The adoption of GASB Statements No. 68 and No. 71 has had, and will continue o have, a profound
effect on the financial statements and net position of school districts and governments not only in
Pennsylvanla, but across the nation, By recognizing the impact of any unfunded liability faced by
defined benefit pension plans, plan administrators (ot the direction of elected officials) and
patrticipants will be required to evaluate the cost of providing these benefits as compared to the
beneiit to be derived through providing for certain retirement benefits to the work force.
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More specifically, the District contributes to the Pennsylvania Public School Employees’ Retirement
System ("PSERS"), a governmental cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that
provides retirement benefits to public school employees of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. In
cost-sharing multiple-employer plans, the plan assets and liabilities are shared. Plan assels can be
used to pay the pensions of the employees of any employer that provides pensions through the plan.
The new standards have shiffted pension reporting from a funding-based approach, in which the
District reported only its confributions to the plan, to an accounting-based approach. Under this new
approach, the District reports is proportionate share of the net pension licbillty on the Statement of
Net Position of the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. Reporting in the
govemmental fund siatements is not affected by the implementation of these statements.

The net pension liabiity is the difference between the market value of pension fund assets and the
actuarial present value of projected beneflt payments at the measurement date. Included Iin the
cdlculafion are projected employer and employee contributions as well as the expectation that the
assefs will grow at the long-term assumed rate of retum on plan investiments,

While the net pension liability is significant to the District's financial staternents, it is a liability the District
has limited control over. Over the last five years, the PSERS employer contribution rate has risen
significantly, from 5.6 percent in 2010-2011 fo 25.84 percent in 2015-20148. These incredses are
expected to improve the plan's funding level, which will reduce net posifion In future years. This rate is
anticipated to continue to increase o da level of over 30 percent in future years.

Fund Financial Statements

The District's fund financial statements provide detadiled information about the most significant funds —
hot the District as a whole. Some funds are required by state law and by bond requirements.

e  Governmenial Funds — Mosi of the District’s activities are reported in governmental funds, which
focus on the dstermination of financlal position and change in financial paosition, not on Income.
They are reported using the modified accrual accounting method, which measures cash and all
other financial assets that can be converted readily fo cash. The governmental fund statements
provide a detalled short-term view of the District’'s operations and the services it provides.
Governmental fund information heips the reader determine whether there cre more or fewer
financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the District’s programs. The
relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported In the Balance Sheet and
fhe Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances) and govemmenial
funds 15 reconciled in the financial statements.

e  Proprietary Funds — These funds are used to account for the District’s activities that are similar to
business opetations in the private sectot; or where the reporting is on determining net income,
financial position, changes in financlal position, and a significant portion of funding through user
charges. When the Disirict charges customers for services it provides - whether to outside
customers or to other units in the District - these services generally are reported in proprietary
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funds. The Food Service Fund Is the District’s proprietary fund and is the same as the business-
lype activities reported in the entity-wide statements, but provides more detail and additional
information, such as cash flows.

*  Flduciary Funds ~ The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to others, such as
trust funds or student activity funds. The District is responsible for ensuring that the assels reported
in these funds are used only for their intended purposes and by those to whom the assets belong.
The District excludes these aciivities from the entity-wide financlal statements because it cannot
use these assets fo finance its operations.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE
Net Position

The District's fotal net deficit as of June 30, 2016 was $(294,287,425). The deficit Is a direct result of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") Statements No. 68 and No. 71, as noted above.
Table A-1 summarizes the assets, deferred outtiows of resources, licbilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and net posifion (deficit) of the District,

Table A1
June 30, 2015 and 2016
Condensed Statement of Net Position
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016
Assets:
Current and other assets $ 72,109,914 $ 81,169,828 $ 861,321 $ 1,257,667 $ 72,971,235 § 82,427,496
Noncurrent assets 187,250,851 184,149,011 125,330 186,300 187,376,181 184,345,311
Deferred outfiows of resources 40,211,306 50,187,427 477,193 603,815 40,688,469 50,791,242
Total Assets and Deferred
Qutflows of Resources $299,672.071  $315508,267 $ 1,463,844 $2,057,782 $301 035,915  $317,564,049
Current and other liabilities $ 33,534,626 § 42,786,778 $ 381802 $ 327,757 § 33,916,418 § 43,114,535
Long-term liabilities 507,975,928 523,275,872 7,267,649 7605732 515243577 530,971 604
Deferred inflows of resources 51,039,626 37,241,835 880,789 523,500 51,920,415 37,765,335
Total Liabilities and Deferred
Inflows of Resources 592,550,080 _ 603,304,485 8,530,330 8,545,989 &01 ,080,410 611,851,474
Net Position (Deficit):
Net investment in capital assets 6,454,355 9,052,559 125,330 186,300 6,579,685 10,148,859
Restricted for debt service 3,985,110 5,678,212 - - 3,985,110 5,578,212
Unrestricted (deficit) (303417,474) (303,328,989) (7,191,816) (6,685,507 (310,609,290) (310,014,498)
Total Net Deficit (292,978,009) (287,708,218) (7,066,485) (6,489,207) (300,044 495) (294,287,425)

Total Liabilities, Deferred
Inflows of Resources, and
Net Deficit $299,672,071 $315506,267 §$1,463,844 3 2,057,782 $301,035,815 $317,564,049
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Changes in Net Deficli

The resulis of this year's operations as a whole are reported in the Statement of Activitles, All expenses
are reported In the first column. Specific charges, grants, revenues, and subsidies that directly relate
To specific expense caiegories are factored in to determine the final amount of the District's activities
that are supported by other general revenues.

Table A-2 takes the information from that statement and rearranges it slightly, so the reader can
compare the District's total revenues for the 2014-2015 and 2015-20146 fiscal years.

Table A-2
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2016
Condensed Statement of Activities

Governmental Activities Business-type Aclivities Totals
2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016
REVENUES
Program revenue:
Charges for services 3 297,770 % 225184 $ 71,571 $ 274016 § 369,341 % 499,200
Operating grants and
contributions 55,235,288 59,921,980 8,805,511 10,400,288 84,040,799 70,322,268
Capital grants and
contributions 1,492,248 - - - 1,492,248 -
General revenue:
Property taxes 80,673,638 85,210,089 - - 80,673,638 85,910,088
Other taxes 8,992,071 10,411,802 - - 8,992,071 10,411,802
Grants, subsidies and
contributions 107,586,142 112,287,301 - - 107,586,142 112,287,301
Investment income 513,783 1,239,156 21,917 16,741 535,700 1,255,887
Transfers 1,750,000 1,750,000  (1,750,000) (1,750,000) - -
Qther 2,146,813 499,648 - - 2,146,813 499,648
TOTAL REVENUES 258,687,753 272,245,160 7,148,998 8,941,045 265,836,752 281,186,205
EXPENSES
Instruction 177,171,232 188,275,579 - - 177,171,232 188,275,579
Instructionat student support 17,832,987 18,967,986 - - 17,832,987 18,967,986
Administrative and financial .
support services 20,020,208 21,677,255 - - 20,020,208 21,677,255
Operation and maintenance
of plant services 15,029,760 15,306,304 - - 15,029,760 15,306,304
Pupil transportation 8,876,464 8,722,331 - - 8,876,464 8,722,331
Student activities 1,622,858 1,932,513 - - 1,622,858 1,932,513
Community services 1,628,356 1,644,132 - - 1,528,356 1,644,132
Interest on long-term debt 10,607,597 10,539,269 - - 10,607 597 10,538,269
Food service - - 8,119,673 8,363,766 8,119,673 8,363,766
TOTAL EXPENSES 252,689,560 267,065,369 8,119,673 8,363,766 260,809,233 275429 135
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
NET POSITION $ 5,998,193 § 5179791 $ (970,874) $ 577279 $ 5027619 $ 5,757,070

-10-
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The increase In property faxes collected is primcrily due 1o an incredse in taxable assessed value as
the millage rate remalned the same as the previous year. Revenues received for operating grants,
general grants and subsidies, and contributions increased from the previous year; these increases are
driven by the growing costs to operate the District.

Expenses for instruction and adminisirative costs increased primarily due to the increases in wages
and retirement costs as well as increased charter school costs.

The tables below present the expenses of both the governmental activities and the business-type
activities of the District.

Table A-3 shows the District's largest functions — instructional programs, instructional student support,
administrative and financial support services, operation of plant and maintenance services, pupil
transportation, student activities, community services, and interest on long-term debt, as well as each
program’s net cost (total cost less revenues generated by the activitles). This table shows the net costs
offset by the charges for services, restricted operating grants and coniributions, and restricted capital
grants and contributions to show the remaining financial needs supported by local revenue and other
miscellaneous revenues.

Table A-3
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2016
Net Cost of Governmental Activities

Total Cost of Services % Change Net Cost of Services % Change
2015 2016 2015-2016 2015 20186 2015-2016
Instruction $177,171,232  $188,275,579 6.27% $127,620,488 $135,107,625 5.86%
Instructional student support 17,832,987 18,967,986 6.36% 17,388,662 18,603,169 6.98%
Administrative and financial
support services 20,020,206 21,677,255 8.28% 20,020,206 21,677,255 8.28%
Operation of plant and
maintenance services 15,029,760 15,306,304 1.84% 13,537,512 15,308,304 13.07%
Pupil transportation 8,876,464 8,722,331 -1.74% 4,620,082 7,027,735 52.11%
Student activities 1,622,958 1,932,513 19.07% 1,380,112 1,738,366 15.18%
Community services 1,528,356 1,644,132 7.58% 1,628,356 1,644,132 7.58%
Interest on long-term debt 10,607,597 10,539,269 -0.64% 9,559,836 5,813,619 -39.19%

Total $252,689,560 $267,065,369 5.69% $195,664,254 $206,918,205 5.68%
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ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - UNAUDITED (CONTD)
JUNE 30, 2016

Table A-4 reflects the activities of the Food Service program, the only business-type activity of the
District.

Table A-4
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2016
Net Cost of Business-type Activities

Net Cost (Revenue)

Total Cost of Services % Change from Services % Change
2015 20186 2015-2016 2015 2016 2015-2016

Function/Program
Food service $ 8,119673 § 8,363,766 3.01% $ (757,409) $§ (2,310,538) 205.06%

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The District's budget is prepared in accordance with Pennsylvania law and is based on the modified
accrual basis of accounting. The most significant budgeted fund Is the General Fund.

During the fiscal year, the Board of School Directors may authorize revisions to the original budget to
accommodate differences from the original budget to the actual expenditures of the District.

The District frequently applies for and/or receives federal, state, and local grants during the fiscal year,
which cannot always be anticlpated during the preliminary budgeting process. Budget revenues
may be increased accordingly as a resuli of these additionally approved grants.  Conversely,
budgeted expenditures also may be increased by the same amounts to offset these additicnal grant
revenues. No budgetl revisions were made to the final 2015-2016 budget which affected total
revenues or fotal expenses. However, budgeted amounts were transferred between budgeted
expense categories during the year to betler align those with actual expenditures being incurred. The
budget did not change In total but only changed expenses by category line items of expense. All
such transfers are approved by the School Board at the regular School Board meetings.

The budgetary reserve includes amounts that may be ransferred info expenditure accounts for
planned expenditures upon approval of the Board of Scheool Directors. These amounts will be
appropriated info expenditure categories only when the expenditure Is necessary for the operation of
the District. Any budget reserve amount not appropriated during the year will become part of the
unassigned accumulated fund balance and available for future years’ budgeting, assuming some
restrictions.

For 2016, actual revenues were more than the budgeted amount by $10,707,833. Actual
expenditures were more than the budgeted amount by $6,003,633. This amount would be less when
including the budgetary reserve expense amount noted above. The statement comparing the
District's General Fund budget and actudi results can be found on page 22,
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ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - UNAUDITED (CONTD)
JUNE 30, 2016

REPORTING THE DISTRICT'S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS

Governmenial Funds

The District's governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $38,351,529, which is below
last vear's total of $42,048,387. The schedule below indicates the fund balances and the total
change in fund balances as of and between June 30, 2015 and 2016.

Fund Balance Fund Balance Increase

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2016 (Decreass)
General fund $ 36,782,649 $ 31,347,201 $ (5,435,358)
Capital reserve fund 1,026,244 1,080,190 53,946
Capital projects fund 29,047 29,169 122
Debt service fund 3,985,110 5,578,212 1,583,102
Other governmental funds 225,337 316,667 91,330
TOTAL $ 42,048,387 $ 38,351,529 $ (3,696,858)

The Disttict's General Fund balance decrease Is due primarily to expenditures exceeding revenues by
$4,509,407 and a refund of prior year revenue of 51,761,143; offset by positive net transfers in of
$835,192. The District's General Fund experienced an increase from state funding of $9,390,412 and
an increase from federal funding of $2,118,049, Total General Fund revenues increased 4.49 percent
from the previous year. General Fund expenditures increased by 519,990,684, or 7.94 percent from
the previous yvear. The increase in expenditures was due primarily to increcses in wages, pensions,
and charter school costs.

The Capital Reserve and Capital Projects Fund balances increased slightly.

The Debt Service Fund increased due to transfers of $884,808 from the general fund for required
sinking fund payments and Investment eamings of $708,294.

Proprietary Fund
The Food Service Fund had a net increase in net position of §577,279. The Statement of Revenues,

Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Proprietary Fund on page 24 will further detail the actual
results of operations.
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ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - UNAUDITED (CONTD)
JUNE 30, 2016

Capital Assels

On June 30, 2016, the District had $184,007,261 in govemmental activilies and $196,300 in business-
type activities invested in a broad range of capital assets, including land, buildings, fumiture, and
equipment. These amounts represent a net decrease (including construction-in-progress and
depreciation) of $3,185,343 in governmental activities and a net increase of $70,970 In business-type
activities from June 30, 2015.

Table A-5
Governmental Activities
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals % Change
2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015-2016
Land $ 3,906,216 $ 3,906216 $§ - $ - $ 3906216 $ 3,906,216 0.00%
Land improvements 1,674,474 1,506,597 - - 1,674,474 1,506,597 -4.31%
Construction-in-progress 8,424 734,452 - - 8,424 734,452 B618.57%
Buildings and building
improvements 176,811,185 172,027 444 - - 175,811,185 172,027,444 -2.15%
Furniture and equipment 5,892,305 5,832,552 125,330 196,300 6,017,635 6,028,852 0.19%
Total $187,192,604 $184,007,261 $125,330 $196,300 $187,317,934 $184,203,561 ~1.66%
Debt Administration

Bond and Note Obligations — As of June 30, 2015 and 20146, the District had outstanding bond and
note obligations of $191,459,932 and $189,060,868, respectively.

Oiher obligations include accrued sick leave and experience payments for specific employees of the
District, accrued other post-employment benefits for retiree healthcare, and the amount of the net
pansion liability discussed in Notes 7, 2, and 12 of the financial stalements.

Durng the fiscal year, the District issued General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2016 in the amount of
$34,550,000. The proceeds of the Bonds were used to advance refund $24,955,000 principal amount
representing the remaining outstanding principal of the Serles A of 2008 Bonds and advance refund
$9,850,000 principal amount representing a portion of the outstanding principal of the Series of 2009
Bonds. The District realized a total savings of $1,598,222, with a net present value savings (economic
gain) of $1,525,736.
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ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - UNAUDITED (CONTD)
JUNE 30, 2016

FACTORS BEARING ON THE DISTRICT'S FUTURE
Act T - Taxpayer Rellef Act

Act 1 of Special Session 2006 created the Taxpayer Relief Act that utllizes gaming dollars and a local
shift fo an earned or personal income tax to fund the plan. Act 1 faciliictes a tax reduction and
possibly a tax shift but does not directly provide additional revenue fo the District fo fund academic
programs.

Other Factors

Factors that will affect the future finances of the Distict are the continuing escalation of employee
health benefits, increases in PSERS pension contributions, loss of students to charter schools, collective
bargaining agreements with the District's professional and support staifs, the potential impact of
indexing and back-end referendums associated with tax reform legislation, and the declining support
in funding from the federal government. Additionally, the District’s propeily values are expected fo
Increase due to major downtown and riveriront revitalization projects presently underway. This stabilily
depends upon general economic conditions, including the unemployment rate of the District's
taxpayers.  Lehigh County's economy, like the economy of the entire country, continues to be
challenged by the slow recovery and volatility. The cost of operations Is anficipated to continue o
rise, and it will be funded through property taxes, state and federal subsidies, and grants.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report Is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, parents, students, investors, and
credifors with o general overview of the Disirict's finances and to show the School Board's
accountability for the money it receives. If you have quesfions about this report or wish to request
additional financial information, please contact the Business Office, Allentown School Disirict, 31 South
Penn $treetl, Allentown, Pennsylvania 18105.

The District also includes a separate legal entlty in its report — the Allentown Public Library. Although
legally separate, the Library is important because the District is financially accountable for it and,
therefore, It has been included as an integral part of the primary govemment. The Library is a
discretely presented compoenent unit and Is reported in a separate column in the entity-wide financial
statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the government. Compilete financial
statements for the Library may be obtained at the Libraty's administrative offices af 31 South Penn
Street, Allentown, Pennsylvania.
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ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Primary Gevernment
Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Unit
ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
ASSETS
Current Assetls;
Cash and cash equivalents $ 40,458,421 $ 4,701,870 $ 46,158,391 k] 701,205
Cash and cash eguivalents with fiscal agent 1,756 - 1,756 -
Investments - - - 980,985
Investments - restricted - . - 79,436
Investments with fiscal agent 5 576 456 - 5,576,458 -
Taxes receivable 0,683,626 - 9,683,625 -
Due from other governments 18,917,957 1,641,649 20,559,608 -
Due from Allentown School District “ - - 229,182
Internal balances 6,229,255 (6,229,2586) - -
Ciher receivables - - - 120,780
Prepald expense 51,746 - 51,748 -
Inventories 252,813 143,303 395,918 -
Total Current Assets 81,168,829 1,257,687 82,427,498 2,130,848
Noncurrent Assets:
Prepaid insurance cosls 141,760 - 141,750 -
Capilal assets:
Lang 3,906,218 - 3,908,216 209,941
Construction-inprogress 734,452 - Ta4,452 -
Land improvements, net 1,508,597 - 1,608,697 8,058
Buildings and building Improvements, net 172,027 444 - 172,027 444 1,298,371
Fumilure and equipment, net 5,832,552 156,300 6,028,852 20,058
Total Noncurrent Assets 184,148,011 106,300 184,345,311 1,636,428
TOTAL ASSETS 265,318,840 1,453,967 268,772,807 3,867,076
DEFERRELD QUTFLGWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charges on bond refunding 9,398,785 - 9,398,785 -
Daferred outflow - interest rate SWAP 14,517,786 - 14,617,786 -
Deferred pension contributions 25,665,947 589,900 26,265,847 316,207
Deferred pension 604,909 13,915 618,824 7,460
TOTAL DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURGES 60,187,427 603,815 50,791,242 323,667
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESQURCES $315,506,267 § 2,057,782 $317 564,049 § 3,980,743
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFL.OWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET DEFICIT
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 10,770,904 3 - $ 10,770,804 & 50,260
Accrued salaries 7,625,980 - 7,625,280 -
Accrued interest 2,304,075 - 2,304,075 -
Accrued benefits and payroll deductions 13,757,322 - 13,767 322 127,803
Unearned revenues 485 265 2120 467,385 -
Other current liabilities - 325,837 926837 -
Due to Allentown Public Library 229,162 - 229,182 -
Bonds payable, net 4,399,570 - 4,398,570 -
Notes payable 3,234,500 - 3,234,500 -
Total Current Liabilitles 42,786,778 327,757 43,114,535 178,163
Noncurrent Llabilities:
Bonds payatlae, net 84,545,208 - 84,545,248 N
Motes payable 98,881 500 - 96,381,500
Compensated absences 1,117,032 - 1,117,832
Gther post-employment kenefits cbligatian 6,334,115 - 6,334,115 "
Not penslan liability 334,397,027 7,695,732 342,002,759 4,128,241
Tatal Nencurcent Liabilites 523,275,872 7,695,732 530,971,604 4,126,241
TOTAL LIABILITIES 566,062,650 8,023,489 574,086,139 4,304,394
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Derivative instrument - Intarest rate SWAP 14,517,786 - 14,517,786 -
Deterred panelon 22,724,048 523,500 23,247,549 280,743
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESCURCES 37,241,835 523,500 37,765,335 280,743
NET POSITION (DEFICIT)
Net investment in capilal assets 9,852,659 166,200 10,148,859 1,536,428
Restricted for library - - . 79,426
Resfiricted for debt service 5,578,212 - 5,578,212 -
Unrestricted (Deficit) (303,328,989) (8.585,507) (310,014,406) (2,210,248)
TOTAL NET DEFICIT (287,798,218} {8,489,207) (294,287 425) (594,384)
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES, AND
NET DEFICIT $315,508,267 $ 2087782 $217.564,049 % 3,080,743

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Deficit

Operating Capital Business-
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental type Gomponernt
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Totals Unit
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:
Instruction $ 188,275,579 $ 34,938 $ 53,133,016 $ - $(135,107.625) 5 - $(135,107,625) $ -
Instructional student support 18,967,986 - 364,817 - {18,603,169) - {18,603,169) -
Administraiive and financial support services 21,677,255 - - - (21,677.255) - {21,677,255) -
Operation and maintenance of plant services 15,308,304 - - - (15,308,304) - (15,306,304) -
Pupil transportation 8,722,331 - 1,694,596 - (7.,027,735) - (7.027,735) -
Student activities 1,932,513 190,246 3,901 - (1,738,366) - (1,738,368) -
Community services 1,644,132 - - - (1,644,132) - (1,644,132) -
Interest on long-termn debt 10,539,262 - 4,725,650 - 5,813,619) - (5,813,619) -
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 267,065,369 225,184 59,921,980 - (206,918,205) - {206,918,205) -
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES:
Food service 8,363,766 274,016 10,400,288 - - 2,310,538 2,310,538 -
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 275,429,135 499,200 70,322,268 - {206,918,205) 2,310,538 (204,607 667) -
COMPONENT UNIT 2,858,767 115,287 1,044,309 16,969 - - - {1,680,112)
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT AND
COMPONENT UNIT $ 278,285,902 $ 614,487 $ 71,366,667 3 16,969 {206,918,205) 2,310,538 (204,607,667) {1,680,112)
GENERAL REVENUES
Property taxes, levied for general purposes 85,910,089 - 85,910,089 1,503,855
Taxes levied for specific purposes 10,411,802 - 10,411,802 -
Grants, entitlements, and confributions
not resfricted to specific programs 112,287,301 - 112,287,301 -
Investment eamings 1,239,156 16,741 1,255,897 27.892
Transfers 1,750,000 (1,750,000} - -
Cther 499,648 - 499,648 -
TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES 212,097,996 {1,733,259) 210,364,737 1,631,747
CHANGE IN NET DEFICIT 5,179,791 577,279 5,757,070 {148,365}
NET DEFICIT, BEGINNING OF YEAR (292,978,009) (7,066,486) (300,044,495) {446,029)
NET DEFICIT, END OF YEAR $(287,798,218) $ (6,489,207 $(204,287 425) & {594,394}

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents with fiscal agent
Investments with fiscal agent

Taxes receivable

Due from other funds

Due from other governments

Prepaid expanditure

Inventory

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,

AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:

Due fo other funds

Accounts payable

Accrued salaries

Accrued benefits and payroll deductions
Unearned revenues

Due to Allentown Public Library

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Unavailable revenues - property taxes
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable

Restricted

Committed

Assigned

Unassigned

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT

JUNE 30, 2016

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Nonmajor
Capital Capital Debt Governmental

General Fund Reserve Fund Projects Fund Service Fund Funds Total
$ 38,967,772 $ 1,080,180 % 78,769 3 - $ 329,800 $ 40,456,421
- “ - 1,756 - 1,756
- - - 5,576,456 - 5,576,456
9,683,625 - - - - 9,683,625
6,304,985 - - - - 6,304,995
18,631,915 - - - - 18,631,915
51,746 - - - - 51,746
239,496 - - - 13,117 252,613
$ 73,879,549 $ 1,080,180 $ 78,769 § 5578212 $ 342807 $ 50,958,527
- $ - $ 49,600 $ - $ 26,140 $ 75,740
10,770,904 - - - - 10,770,904
7,625,980 - - - - 7,625,980
13,757,322 - - - - 13,757,322
465,265 - - - - 465,265
229,162 - - - - 229,162
32,848,633 - 49,600 - 25,140 32,924,373
9,683,625 - - - - 9,683,625
9,683,625 - - - - 9,683,625
291,242 - - - 13,117 304,359
- - 29,169 5,578,212 - 5,607,381
4,400,000 - - - - 4,400,000
15,165,332 1,080,190 - - 303,550 16,549,072
11,490,717 - - - - 11,490,717
31,347,291 1,080,190 29,169 5,578,212 316,667 38,351,529
73,879,549 $ 1,080,190 $ 78,769 $ 5,578,212 342807 $ 80,959,527
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REVENUES

Local sources

State sources
Federal sources
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Instruction

Support services

Operation of noninstructional services
Debt service:

Principal, interest, and fiscal agent fees
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Refund of prior year revenues

Refunding bonds issued

Premium on refunding bonds issued

Payment to refunded bond escrow agent
Transfers in

Transfers ouf

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR

ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOYERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Nonmajor
Capital Capital Debt Governmental

General Fund Researve Fund Projects Fund Service Fund Funds Total
$ 93,460,294 3 53,046 3 122 $ 708,294 3 118,058 $ 94,340,714
153,735,977 - - - 3,801 153,739,878
20,183,222 - - - - 20,183,222
267,379,493 53,946 122 708,294 121,859 268,263,814
186,203,630 - - - - 186,203,630
65,938,988 - - - - 65,938,088
3,475,309 - - - 60,629 3,535,938
16,270,973 - 440,155 - - 16,711,128
271,888,900 - 440,155 - 60,629 272,389,684
{4,508,407) 53,946 (440,033} 708,294 51,330 (4,125,670)
(1,761,143) - - - - (1.761,143)
- - 34,550,000 - - 34,550,000
- - 3,820,757 - - 3,820,757
- - (37,930,602) - - (37,930,602)
1,750,000 - - 884,808 30,000 2,664,808
{914,808) - - - - {914,808)
{925,951) - 440,155 884,808 30,000 428,012
(5,435,358) 53,946 122 1,583,102 91,330 (3,696,858)
36,782,648 1,026,244 28,047 3,985,110 225,337 42,048,387
$ 31,347,281 $ 1,080,190 % 29,169 $ 5,578,212 3 316,667 $ 38,351,529

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ALLENTOWN SCHQOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different
because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities, the cost of those assets Is capitalized and allocated over their estimated useful
lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation expense of
$5,449,170 exceeded net capital outlays of $2,263,827 in the perlod.

Because some property taxas will not be collected for several months after the District's fiscal
year ends, they are not considered as "available" revenues in the governmental funds. Unavailable
tax revenues increased by this amount this year.

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes current
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on
net position. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term
dabt.

Governmental funds report bond discounts and deferred amounts on bond refunding as other
financing uses and bond premiums as cther financing sources. However, these amounts are
reported on the statement of net position as deferred charges and are amortized over the life of
the debt.

in the statement of activities, certain operating expenses—compensated absences (vacations
and sick leave) and the other post-employrment benefits obligation—-are measured by the
amounts earned during the year. in the governmental funds, however, expenditures for these
items are measured by the amount of financial resources used (essentially, the amounts
actually paid). This is the amount by which current period amounis earned exceeded current
peried compensated absences paid.

Compensated absences $ 411,200

Other post-employment benefits obligation (179,787}

Debt service subsidy relmbursements in the statement of activities differs from the amount
reporied in the governmental funds because debt service related payments are recognized as
expenditures In the funds when they are dus; tharefore, the related subsidy reimbursement is
recognized as the debt payment is accrued, regardless of when it is due.

Interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities differs from the amount repotted in the
governmental funds because interest is recognized as an expenditure in the funds when itis
due and, thus, requires the use of current financial resources. In the statement of activities,
however, interest expense is recognized as the interest accrues, regardless of when it is due.

Pension expenses in the statement of activities differ from the amount reported in the govern-
mental funds because pension expenses are recognized on the statement of activities based
on the District's proportionate share of the expenses of the cost-sharing pension plan, whereas
pension expenditures are recognized in the governmental funds when a requirement to remit
contributions fo the plan exists.

CHANGE IN NET DEFICT OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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% (3,696,858)

(3,185,343)

3,992,793

6,084,931

{911,105)

232,113

(305)

206,363

2,457,202

$ 5,179,791
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ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT
BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

REVENUES

l.ocat sources

State sources
Federal sources
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction
Regular programs, elementary/secondary
Special programs, elementary/secondary
Vocational education programs
Other instructional programs
Nonpublic school programs
Community/juniar college programs
Total Instruction
Support Services
Pupil personnel
Instructional staff
Administration
Pupil health
Business
Operation and maintenance of plant services
Student transportation services
Central
Other support services
Total Support Services
Operation of Noninstructional Services
Student activities
Community services
Total Operation of Noninstructional Services
Debt Servica
Principal, interest, and fiscal agent fees
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Budgetary reserve

Refund of prior year revenues

Transfers in

Transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURGCES

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

Variance With
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Qriginal Final Actual (Negative)
$ 93,242,120 $ 93,242,120 $ 93,460,294 $ 218174
148,183,926 148,183,926 153,735,977 5,552,051
15,245,614 15,245,614 20,183,222 4,937,608
256,671,660 256,671,660 267,379,493 10,707,833
118,769,675 118,848,648 128,184,581 (9,335,933}
37,382,630 37,825,185 43,578,495 (5,753,310}
9,750,522 9,749,838 9,689,793 60,045
7,900,309 7,808,309 3,064,356 4,844 953
86,897 86,897 177,424 {90,527)
1,508,981 1,508,981 1,508,981 -
175,408,015 175,928,658 186,203,630 {10,274,772)
9,136,824 9,132,480 10,384,149 (1,251,689)
8,707,947 8,668,072 3,701,289 4,966,783
14,026,046 14,002,826 14,553,752 (550,926)
2,802,218 2,802,218 4,672,906 {1,870,688)
2,116,629 2,116,629 1,715,787 400,842
17,885,927 17,408,034 17,319,824 88,210
9,686,757 ©,686,757 8,722,331 964 426
5,236,204 5,262,204 4,751,737 510,557
125,000 125,000 117,213 7,787
69,723,642 69,204,310 65,938,088 3,265,322
1,664,408 1,662,777 1,831,177 {168,400)
2,119,373 2.119,493 1,644,132 475,361
3,783,781 3,782 270 3,475,300 306,061
16,969,829 16,969,829 16,270,973 698,856
265,885,267 265,885,267 271,888,900 (6,003,633)
(9,213,607) (9,213,607) (4,509,407) 4,704,200
(1,500,000} (1,500,000) - 1,500,000
- - (1,761,143) {1,761,143)
1,750,000 1,750,000 1,750,000 -
(30,000) {30,000) (914,808) (884,808)
220,000 220,000 (926 951) (1,145,951}
(8,993,607 (8,993,607) (5,435,358) 3,568,249
36,782,649 36,782,649 36,782,649 -
$ 27,789,042 $ 27,780,042 $ 31,347,291 $ 3558249

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

992 .



ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND

JUNE 30, 2016

ASSETS AND DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents

Due from other governments

Inventories

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

CAPITAL ASSETS:
Furniture and equipment, net

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred pension contribufions

Deferred pension

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESCURCES

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND
NET DEFICIT

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Unearned revenues

Due to other funds

Other current liabilities

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Net pension liability

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES:
Deferred pension

NET POSITION (DEFICIT):
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted (deficit)

TOTAL NET DEFICIT

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND NET DEFICIT

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Food

$ 5,701,970
1,641,648
143,303

7,486,022

196,300

589,900
13,8156

603,815

$ 8,287,037

$ 2,120

6,229,255
325637

6,557,012

7,605,732
523,500

196,300
(6,685,507)

(6,489,207)

$ 8,287,037



ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES

IN NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

OPERATING REVENUES

Food service revenues

Other operating revenue

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and wages

Employee benefits

Purchased professional and technical services
Purchased property services

Other purchased services

Supplies

Depreciation

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING LOSS
NONOPERATING REVENUES

State sources

Federal sources

Interest income

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES
INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS
Transfers out

CHANGE IN NET DEFICIT

NET DEFICIT, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET DEFICIT, END OF YEAR

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Food
Service Fund

$ 257562
16,454

274,016

2,360,188
1,309,862
2,162
67,326
5,231
4,597,343
21,653

8,363,766

(8,089,750)

830,037
9,570,251
16,741

10,417,029

2,327,279

(1,750,000)

577,279

(7,066,486)

$ (6,489,207)




ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Receipts from customers $ 248,550

Payments to suppliers (3,143,319)
NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (2,894,769)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

State sources 819,607
Federal sources 8,637,749

Transfers out {1,750,000)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 7,707,356

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Acquisition of capital assets (92,623)
NET CASH USED BY CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANGING ACTIVITIES (92,623)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Interest income 16,741

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 16,741

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 4,736,705

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 965,265

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH USED

BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating loss

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used by
operating activities:

Food

Serviee Fund

$ 5,701,970

$ (8.089,750)

Depreciation 21,653

USDA donated commodities 685,311

Changes in assets and liablifities:
Increase in inventories (25,466)
Increase in deferred pension contributions (120,949}
Increase in deferred pension (5,673}
Increase in due to other funds 4,623,446
Decrease in other liabilities (54,135)
Increase in net pension liability 428,083
Decrease in deferred pension (357,289)

NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE

NONCASH NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITY:
USDA donated commaodities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
LIABILITIES:
Other current liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET POSITION:
Restricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2016

3
$

287,242

Student
Activity Funds

287,242

287,242

287,242

287,242

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

7

IRC Section

125 Fund
$ 204,508

$ 204,508

$ 204,508

204,508

$ 204,508

Total
Agency
Funds

481,750

491,750

481,750

491,750

491,750

Private-
Purpose
Trust

157,176

157,176

157,176

157,176

157,176



ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION - FIDUCIARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

ADDITIONS
Local sources
TOTAL ADDITIONS

DEDUCTIONS
Expenses

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS
CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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$

Private-
Purpose
Trust

28,846

28,846

28,846

128,330

157,176



NOTE 1

ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Allentown School District ("the District”) was incorporated in 1866 under the provisions of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The District operates 15 elementary schools, four middle
schools, and two senior high schools to provide education and related services 1o the residents of
the City of Allentown. The District operates under current standards prescribed by the
Pennsylvania Department of Education in accordance with the provisions of the School Laws of
Pennsylvania as a school district of the second class. The District operales under a locally
elected nine-member Board form of govermnment.

The financial siatements of the Districi have been prepared in accordance with generdlly
accepted accounting principles ("GAAPY) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board ["GASB") Is the authoritative standard-setting body for the
establishment of governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

Reporting Entity

GASB Statement No. 14, "The Financial Reporting Entity,” as amended by GASB Statements No. 39
and No. 61, established the criteria for determining the activities, organizations, and functions of
government to be included in the financial stafements of the reporting entity. In evaluating the
District as a reporting entity, management has addressed all potential component units which
may or may not fall within the District's financial accountability. The criterla used to evaluate
component units for possible inclusion as part of the District's reporting entity are financial
accountability and the nature and significance of the relationship. Based on these criterlq, the
District has determined that the Allentown Public Library (“the Library") is a component unit of the
District.

The District appoints the Library board for terms of three years and reviews the Library budget.
The Library dlso recelves a majority of its revenues from an cppropriation of real estate taxes
levied by the District.

The Library is a discretely presented component unit and is reported in a separate column in the
entity-wide financial statements o emphasize that it is legally separate from the government.
Complete financial statements for the Library may be obtained at the Library's administrative
offices at 31 South Penn Street, Allentown, Pennsylvania.

Basis of Presentation

Entify-wide Financial Statements

The statement of net position and the siatement of aclivities display Information about the District
as a whole. These statements distinguish between activities that are governmental and those that

are considered business-type. These statements include the financial activities of the primary
government, except for fiduciary funds.
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NOTE 1

ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

The entity-wide financial siatements are prepared using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting as further defined under proprietary funds below. This
is the same approach used in the preparation of the proprietary fund financial statements but
differs from the manner in which govemnmental fund financial statements are prepared.
Therefore, governmental fund financial statements include a reconciliation with brief explanations
to better identify the relationship between the entity-wide statements and the statements of
govemmental funds.

The enfity-wide statement of aciivities presents a comparison between expenses and program
revenues for each function of the business-type aclivities of the District and for ecch
governmental program, Expenses are those that are associated specifically with a service or
program and are, thetefore, clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues
include charges paid by the recipients of the goods or services offered by the programs and
grants and contributions that are restricted fo meeting the operational or capltal requirements of
d particular function. Revenues which are not classified as program revenues are presenfed as
general revenues. The comparisen of program revenues and expenses identifies the extent to
which each program is sslf-financing or draws from the general revenues of the District,

Except for interfund activity and balances between the funds that undetlie governmental
activities and the funds that underlie business-type activities, which are reported as transfers and
internal balances, the effect of inlerfund activity has been removed from these statements.

Fund Financial Staftements

During the school year, the District segregates transactions related to certain District funclions or
cctivities in separate funds in order to qid financial management and to demonstrate legal
compliance. Fund financial stalements repott detailed information about the District. The focus
of govermnmental and enterprise fund financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting
funds by type. Each major fund is presented in a separate column. Fiduciary fund financial
statements are presented by fund type.

Governmenial Funds

All governmental funds are accounted for using the modlified accrual basis of accounting and
the current financial resources measurement focus. Under this basls, revenues are recognized in
the accouniing period in which they become measurable and available. Expenditures are
recognized in the accounting period in which the fund liability is Incurred, if measwrable. The
District reporis the following major governmental funds:

» The General Fund Is the government's primary operating fund. it accounts for all financial

resources of the general govemment, except those required to be accounted for In another
fund.
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NOTE 1

ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cont'd)

+ The Capital Projects Fund is used to accouni for the proceeds of general obligation notes
and bonds and for the acquisition, construction, and renovation of major capital facilities
and their related capital assets as described in the note agreements.

e The Capital Reserve Fund is used to account for funds set aside for infended capital
expenditure projects.

s The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of, general long-term debt principal and inferest,

Revenue Recognition

In applying the "susceptible o accrual concept" under the modified accrual basis, revenues are
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current pericd or soon encugh
thereafier to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers tax
revenue to be avallable if collected within 40 days of the end of the fiscal period. During the
year ended June 30, 2016, the District recognized certain revenuss from the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania, which were received more than 60 days after year end but are usually received
within 60 days of year end, The District determined that their exclusion would be misieading to
the financial statements. Revenue from federal, state, and other grants desighated for payment
of specific District expenditures is recognized when the relaled expenditures are incured,;
accordingly, when such funds are received, they are reported as unearned revenues until
earned.

Other revenues, including certaln other charges for services and miscellaneous revenues, are
recorded as revenue when recelved in cash because they generally are not measurable until
actually received.

Expenditure Recognition

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial
resources [expenditures) rather than expenses. Most expendiiures are measurable and are
recorded when the related fund liability Is incurred. However, principal and Interest on general
long-term debt which has not matured dre recognized when paid. Liabilities for compensated
absences and special termination benefits are recognized as fund liabilities to the extent they
mature each period. Allocations of costs, such as depreciation and amortization, are not
recognized in the govemmental funds.

Proprietary Funds
The District's only major proprietary fund is the Food Service Fund and is used to account for all

financidl transactions related 1o the food service operation. Proprietary funds are accounted for
using the accrual basis of accounting. These funds account for operations that are financed
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NOTE 1

ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

primarily by user charges. The economic resources measurement focus concems determining
costs as & means of mdintaining the capiial investment and management condrol. Revenues are
recognized when they are earned, and expenses are recognized when they are incurred.
Allocations of certain costs, such as depreciation, are recorded in proprietary funds. The District
allocates "building-wide costs" to the proprietary fund. Specifically, general fund expenditutes
that partially benefit the proprietary fund {utilities, janitorial services, insurance, efc.) are
recognized proportionately within the proprietary fund.

These funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing setvices and producing and delivering
goods in connection with the proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal
operating revenues of the Dishict's propriefary fund are food service charges. Operating
expenses for the District's proprietary fund include food production costs, supplies, and
administrative costs, All revenues or expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses,

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds account for the assets held by the District as a frustee or agent for individuals,
private organizations, and/or governmental units and are, therefore, not available to support the
District's own programs. The District accounts for these assefs in a private-purpose trust and
agency funds. The private purpose and agency funds account for funds held on behalf of
students and employees of the District. The measurement focus and basis of accounting for the
private-purpose trust Is the same as for proprietary funds, while the agency fund is custodial in
nature {assets equal liabilities) and does not involve measurement of results of operations.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The District’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be ¢ash on hand, demand deposits,
and short-term Investments with criginal maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition,
Investments

Investments are reported at fair value.

In establishing the fair value of investments, the District uses the following hierarchy. The lowest
available level of valuation available is used for all Investments,

Level 1 — Valuations based on quoted market prices In active markets for identical assets or
liabkilities that the entity has the ability to access.
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NOTE 1

ALLENTOWN SCHCOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contdl)

Level 2 — Valuations based on quoted prices of similar products in active markets or identical
products in markets that are not active or for which all significant inputs are observable, directly
or indirectly.

Level 3 — Valuations based on inpuis that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair
vdlue measurement,

Receivables and Payables

State subsidies represent current year entittements and are recognized as revenue In the current
fiscal year even though funds may be received in the following year. Federal program funds
applicable to expenditures of the current fiscal year but expected to be received in the next
fiscal year are accrued as current year revenues.

Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arangements outsianding at
the end of the fiscal year Is referred to as either due to/from other funds (i.e., the current portion of
interfund loans) of advances toffrom other funds (l.e., the noncurrent portion of interfund foans).
Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type
aclivities are reported in the entity-wide financial statements as internal balances.

The District expetiences very small losses from uncollectible propetty taxes. Properly taxes
constitute a lien against real property and usually can be collected in full when title transfers.
Only balances that remain after tax sales are written off each year. Accordingly, an allowance
for doubtful accounts has not been established by the District for property taxes receivable.

Property Taxes

Taxes are levied on July 1 and are pdyable in the following perlods:

July 1 - September 5 - Discount period, 2% of gross levy
September 6 - November 5 Face pericd

November 6 - December 31 Penalty period, 10% of gross levy
January 1 - lien date

Assessed valuations of property are determined by the Lehigh County Board of Assessments. The
tax on real estate for public school purposes for fiscal year 2015-2016 was 18.3287 mills (518.33
for $1,000 of assessed valuation).

Prepdaid ltems and Inventories

Certaln payments to vendors reflect costs applicable o future accounting periods and are
recorded s prepaid items in both entity-wide and fund financial statements.
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NOTE 1

ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [cont'd)

The District's general fund inventory, except stock supplies, is expensed under the purchase
method, and all other general fund inventory is charged to inventory when purchased and
expensed when used under the consumplion method. Supplies are taken out of inventory using
the weighted average cost method. The District's food setvice fund inventory of food and
supplies, except inventory dondated by the USDA, is valued at last unit cost and expensed as used.
Denated food from the U.S. Department of Agriculture is recorded af fair market value at the time
of donation,

Capital Agsets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, are reported In the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the entity-wide and proptietary fund financial
statements. Capiltal assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial, individual cost of
more than $6,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at
historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair
value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
matericlly extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed,
inclusive of ancillary costs.

Property, plant, and equipment of the District are depreciated using the stralght-line method cver
the following estimated useful lives;

Land improvements 20 years
Buildings and improvements 20 - 50 years
Furniture and equipment 5 - 20 years
Vehicles 8 vears
Compensated Absences

Employees are compensated for longevity payments, and sick and vacation days as stipulated in
their collective bargaining agreements. The liability for these compensated absences is
recorded as a long-term liability in the entity-wide financial statements. " In the fund financial
statements, govemnmmental funds report the compensated absence liability only to the extent that
it Is payable from expendable available financial resources.

Long-term Obligations

In the entity-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt
and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities. Bond premiums and discounts are
netted against outstanding principal balances and amorfized over the life of the bonds.
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NOTE 1

ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Deferred amounts on refunding dre recorded as a deferred inflow or outflow of resources and
amortized over ihe life of the old delbt or the life of the new debt, whichever is shorter. Prepaid
bond insurance costs are reported as g deferred charge and ameortized over the life of the debt.
All other issuance costs are expensed when incurred. All amortized amounts are amortized using
the shiciighi-line method.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current petiod. The face amount of debt
issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received and discounts paid on delbt
issuances are reported as other financing sources and uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds recelved, are reported as debt service expenditures,
except for refundings paid from proceeds, which are reparted as other financing uses.

Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources versus
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Net investiment in capital assets consists of capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any
borrowings used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Net position is
reported as restricted when there are limitalions imposed ¢n their use either through the enabling
legislation adoepted by the District or through external resirictions imposed by creditors, grantors,
or laws or regulations of other governments. When both restricied and unrestricted resources are
avaiiable for use, it is the District's policy to use restricted resources first and then unrestricted
resources as they are needed.

Fund Balances
Fund badlances of the governmental funds are classified, if applicable, as follows:

Nonspendable — amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendabile form or
because they are tegally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted - amounts that ¢an be spent only for specific purposes because of constitutlonal
provisions or enabling legislation, or because of consiraints that are exiernally imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of other govethments.

Commifted - amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by formal action
of the Board of School Directors. The Board Is the highest level of decision-making cuthority for
the District. Commitments may be established, modifled, or rescinded only through resclutions
approved by the Board of School Directors.

Assignhed - amounis that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed but

that are intended to be used for specific purposes, The Chief Financial Officer may assign
amounts for specific purposes.
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NOTE 1

ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Unassigned - all other spendable amounts.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund
balances are avallable, the District considers restricted funds to have been speni first. When an
expendiiure Is incurred for which commitied, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are
available, the District considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then
assigned funds and, finally, unassigned funds, as needed, unless the Board or Chief Financial
Officer have provided otherwise in its commiiment or assignment actions.

Defernred Inflows and Deferred Quiflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net pasition and balance sheet - governmental funds will
sometimes report a separate section for deferred ouiflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then. The District has four ilems that qualify for reporfing in this
category. The first is the deferred charge on bond refunding reported In the statement of net
position. A deferred charge on bond refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of
refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter
of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. The second ltem is the deferred oufflow - interest
rate SWAP which meets the requirements of hedge accounting under GASB Statement No. 53.
The change In the fair value of the hedge is recognized as a deferral in the statement of net
position instead of in the statement of activities. The third item is pension contributions made
subsequent to the measurement date and, therefore, not reflected in the net pension liability
under full accrual basis reporting. This item is reported as a deferred outflow of resources on the
entity-wide and proprietary fund statement of net position. The fourth item is the unamortized
porlion of contributions made in excess of the District's share of the proportionate contributions
into its pension plan.

In addifion to liabilities, the statement of net position and balance sheet - governmental funds will
sometimes report separate sections for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element represents an acqulsition of net position that applies 1o a future period(s) and
so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District currently
has three types of items that qualify for reporting in this category. Delinguent taxes not collected
within 60 days of year end and, therefore, not available under modified accrual reporting are
reflected as deferred inflows of resources on the general fund balance sheet, The deferred Inflow
of resources - derivative instrument interest rate SWAP represenis changes in the falr value of
derivative instruments that are applicable to future reporting periods when additional events
oceur and are reporied In the statement of net position. Certaln changes to the net pension
liability are required to be amortized over a period of years; the unamortized portions of these
changes are reflected as deferred inflows of resources on the stalement of net position.
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NOTE 1

NOTE 2

NOTE 3

ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Implementation of GASB Statement

During the year ended June 30, 2016, the District implemented GASB Statement No. 72, "Fair
value Measurement and Application.” GASB Statement No. 72 provides guidance for determining
a fair value measurement for financial reporting purposes and applying fair value to certain
investments, as well as Improving disclosures related to all failr value measurements. The effects of
this statement have been included in the District's financial statement footnotes.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, acfual results could differ from those estimates.

STEWARDSHIP COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budgetary Information

An annugil budget is adopted prior to the beginning of each year for the general fund on the
modified accrual basis of accounting. The general fund is the only fund for which a budget is
legally required, although project-lengih financial plans are adopted for all capifal projects
funds.

The District is required to publish notice by advertisement at lsast once in two newspapers of
general circulation in the municipalities in which it is located and within 20 days of fincl actlon
that the proposed budget has been prepared and is avallable for public inspection at the
administrative offices of the District. Notice that public hearings will be held on the proposed
operating budget must be included in the advertisement; such hearings are required to be
scheduled at least 10 days prior to the date final action on adoption is taken by the Board.

Legal budgetary control is maintained at the sub-function/major object level. The Board may
make transfers of funds appropriated fo any particular item of expenditure by legislative action in
accordance with the Pennsylvania School Code. Approptiations lapse at the end of the fiscal
period. Budgetary information reflected in the financlal statemenis is presented at or below the
level of budgetary control and includes the effect of approved budget amendments.

DEPOSITS
statutes authorize the District to invest in U.S. Treasury bills, time or share accounts of instifutions

insured by the Federal Deposit Insurcince Corporation, or in certificates of deposit when they are
secured by proper bond or collateral, repurchase agreements, State Treasurer's investment pools,
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NOTE 3

NOTE 4

ALLENTOWN SCHCOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEPOSITS (cont'd)

or mutual funds. During the year ended June 30, 20146, the Pennsyivania Legislature passed Act
10 of 2016, which expanded allowoble investments to include commercial paper, bankers'
acceptances, and negotiable certificates of deposit that are highly rated by at least two national
rating agencies.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government's deposits may
not be returned. The Dislrict does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. Af June 30, 2016, the
carnying amount of the District's deposits was $46,809,073, and the bank balance was
$49,072,632. Of the bank balance, $307,389 was covered by federal depositoty insurance, and
$35,533,549 was exposed o custodial credit tisk because, in accordance with Act 72 of the
Commonwealih of Pennsylvania, it was uninsured and the collateral held by the depository’s
agent was not in the District's name.

The District also had cash deposits in the amount of §13,231,694 in the Pennsylvania Local
Government Investment Trust ("PLGIT"). Although not registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission and not subject to regulatory ovetsight, PLGIT acts like a money market mutual fund
in that its objective is to maintain a stable net asset value of $1 per share, is rated by a nationally
recognized statistical rating organization, and is subject to an independent annual audit. As of
June 30, 2014, PLGIT was rated as AAAmM by a naticnally recognized statistical rating agency.

Discretely Presented Component Unit

At June 30, 2016, the carrying amount of the Library's deposits was $701,295, and the bank
balance was $794,475. Of the bank balance, $250,000 was covered by federal depository
insurance, and the remaining $544,475 was exposed to custodial credit risk because, in
accordance with Act 72 of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, it was uninsured and the
collateral held by the depository’s agent was not in the Library’s name.

INVESTMENTS

The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair vaiue hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The Diskrict has the following recuning fair value
measurements as of June 30, 2016:

Matures in
Greater Than
Fair Value Level 1 Five Years
U.S. Treasury bonds and notes § 5,576,456 § 5,576,456 $ 5,576,456
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INVESTMENTS (cont'd)
Credit Risk

As of June 30, 2016, the District's investments in U.S. Treasury bonds and notes are backed by the
full faith and credit of the U.S. govemment and are not considered to have credit risk.

Interest Rate Risk

As of June 30, 20146, all of the District’s iInvestments in U.S. Treasury notes have mafurlties of 10 to
15 years. The District does not have a policy for interest rate risk,

Custodial Credit Risk

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the District will nof be dble to recover the value of its investments or coliateral
security that are In the possession of an outside party. As of June 30, 2016, the District did not
have any investmenis subject to custodial credit risk.

Discretely Presented Component Unit

The Library categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The Library has the following recurring fair value
measurements as of June 30, 2016;

Matures In

Less Than

Investment Type Fair Value Level 1 One Year
Equity mutual funds $ 609,349 5 609,349 $ 609,349
Bond mutual funds 233,129 233,129 233,129
Domestic equities 121,445 121,445 121,445
Money market mutual fund 115,488 115,488 115,488
TOTAL $ 1,079,411 $ 1,079,411 $ 1,079,411

Investments in external investment pools, such as those in mutual funds, are disclosed but not
subject 1o interest rate, custodial, credit, or concentration risks because they are not evidenced
by securities that exist in physical or book entry form.
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CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activily for the yeat ended June 30, 20716 was as follows:

Governmental Activities

Capital assets nol being depreciated:

Land

Conshruction-In-progress

Total Capital Assets Not Being
Depreciated

Capital assels being depreciated:
Land improvements

Buildings and improvements

Furniture and equipment

Total Capltal Assets Being Depreciated

Less accumulcited depreciation for:
Land improverments

Buildings and improvernents
Furniture and equipment

Total Accumulated Depraciation

Total Capltal Assels Belng Depreciated,
Net

Govarnmental Activities, Net

Business-type Actlviles

Capital assets being depreclated:
Furniture and equipment

Total Capltal Assets Being Depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Furniture and equipment

Total Accumulated Depreclation

Business-type Activities, Net

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decrecses Bolance
$ 3,906,216 § - % - § 3906216

8,424 734,452 8,424 734,452
3,914,640 734,452 8,424 4,640,668
3,412,940 56,902 - 3,469,842

234,518,168 817,231 - 237,336,099
25,432,351 662,266 - 26,102,317
265,370,459 1,537,799 - 266,908,258
1,838,466 124,779 - 1,963,245
60,706,983 4,601,672 - 65,308,655
19,547,046 722,719 - 20,269,765
82,092,495 5,449,170 - 87,541,645
183,277,964 (3,211,371) - 179,366,593
5187,192,604 $ (3,176919) § (8,424) $184,007,261
5 '|.78'1,847 ] 92,623 § - $ 1,874,470
1,781,847 92,623 1,874,470
1,656,517 21,653 - 1,678,170
1,656,517 21,653 1,678,170

$ 125,330 § 70,970 § - § 196,300
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NOTE 5 CAPITAL ASSETS (cont'd)
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the District as follows:

Governmenfal Activities:

Instruction $4,138,039
Instructional student support 417,172
Administrative and financial support services 468,054
Operation and maintenance of plant services 385,180
Student activities 40,725
Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities $ 5,449,170
Business-type Activities - Food Service § 21,653

Discretely Presented Component Unit

Activity for Allentown Public Library for the year ended June 30, 2016 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increcses Decredses Balance

Capital assets not being depreclated:
Land $ 209941 % - $ - § 209,947
Total Capital Assets Nof Belng

Depreclated 209,941 - - 209,941
Capital assetfs being depreciated:
Land improvemenis 59,082 8,790 - 67,872
Bulldings and improvements 3,895,201 9,950 - 3,205,151
Furniture and equlpment 386,314 16,269 - 403,283
Total Capital Assets Belng Depreciated 4,340,597 35,709 - 4,376,306
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land Improvements 59,082 732 - 59,814
Buildings and improvemenits 2,528,634 78,144 - 2,606,780
Furniture and equipment 381,814 1,411 - 383,226
Total Accumulated Depreciation 2,969,532 80,287 - 3049819
Total Capital Assets Belng Deprecialed,

Net 1,371,065 {44,578) - 1,326,487
Total Capital Assets, Net $ 1,681,006 $ (44,578) § - $ 1,536,428
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INTERNAL RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 20146 is as follows:

Receivable To Payable From Amount

General Fund Capitat Projects Fund $ 49,600
General Fund Food Service Fund § 6,229,255
General Fund Other Governmental Funds § 26,140

Interfund balances between funds result mainly from the time lag between when reimbursable
expenditures cccur and payments between the funds have been made. The balances generally
are paid shorily after year end.

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2016 are as follows:

Transfer In Transfer Out Amount

General Fund Food Service Fund $ 1,750,000
Debt Service Fund General Fund $ 884,808
Other Governmental Fund General Fund [ 30,000

Transfers represent annual budgeted amounts fransferred from the food service fund to the
general fund for indirect charges related to food service operations. Transfers also include
amounts deposited into a sinking fund {the Debt Service Fund) for future debi service payments
as required by the repayment terms on the Qualified Zone Academy Bonds ("@ZAB") and
Qualified School Construction Bonds ("@SCB") disclosed in Note 7.

LONG-TERM DEBT

The following summarizes the changes in the long-term liabilities of governmental activities for the
year ended June 30, 2016:

Amounts
Balance Balance Due in
July 1, 2015 Additions Reductions June 30,2016 One Yoar

Bonds payable § 87,976,935 § 34,550,000 $37,784,931 $ 84,742,004 $4,265,964
Bond premium 898,024 3,820,757 152,639 4,566,142 121,355
Bond discount (381,027} - (17.749) (363,278) (17,749)
Notes payable 102,946,000 - 2,850,000 100,116,000 3,234,500
Post-employment benefits 6,154,328 179,787 - 6,334,115 -
Accumulated compensaled

absences 1,529,832 - 411,900 1,117,932 -
TOTALS $199,144,092 & 38,550,544 541,181,721 $196,5612,915 57,634,070
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LONG-TERM DEBT {cont'd)

Payments of long-term debt are expected to be funded by the general fund.

General Obligation Bonds

Series of 2000, maturing through February 2017, bearing
interest ranging from 4.75% to 5.96%, interest payable
semi-annually in February and August.

Series of 2009, maturing through February 2019, bearing
Interest of 3.75%, interest payable semi-annually in
February and August.

Series A of 2010, maturing through Febtuary 2029,
bearing interest ranging from 3.00% 10 4.25%, interest
payable semi-annually in February and August.

Seties A of 2010 QSCB, requiring sinking deposits through
September 2027, bearing interest of 5.00%, interest
payable semi-annudlly in March and Seplember.

Series C of 2010 QZAB, requiring sinking fund deposits
through September 2028, bearing Interest of 6.495%,
interest payable semi-annually in March and September.

Series of 2011 @ZAB, requiring sinking fund deposits
through September 2026, bearing interest of 5.426%,
interest payable semi-annually in March and September.

Series of 2011, maturing through February 2028, bearing
interest ranging from 2.00% to 4.00%, interest payable
semi-annually in August and February.

Series A of 2014, maturing through March 2024, bearing
interest ranging from 2,00% to 5.00%, inferest payable
semi~annudlly in March and September.

Serles B of 2014, maturing through March 2017, bearing
inferest ranging from 1.186% to 1.973%, interest payable
semi-annuclly in March and September.

Series B of 2016, maturing through February 2031,

bearing interest ranging from 2.00% to 4.00%, interest
payable semi-annually in August and February.

TOTAL BONDS

-4 -

$ 1,026,004

800,000

16,090,000

5,666,000

8,970,000

2,000,000

2,980,000

12,010,000

650,000

34,550,000

$ 84,742,004
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LONG-TERM DEBT (cont'd)

General Obligation Notes

Serles of 2007, maturing through February 2018, with
interest at variable rates, payable monthly. Inferest
rates change on a weekly basis as determined by the
lender. The interest rate as of June 30, 2016 was 0.45%.

Series of 2008, maturing through February 2030, with
interest at variable rates payable monthly. Interest rates
change on a weekly basis as determined by the lender.
The interest rate as of June 30, 20146 was 0.43%.

Series of 2009, maturing through February 2031, with
interest at variable rates payable monthly. Interest rates
change on a weekiy basis as determined by the lender.
The interest rate as of June 30, 2016 was 0.99%.

Sertes of 2010 A, maturing through February 2020, with
interest at variable rates payable monthly. Interest rates
change on a weekly basis as determined by the lender.
The interest rate as of June 30, 2016 was 0.45%.

Series of 2010 B, maturing through February 2023, with
interest at variable rates payakbkle monthly. Interest rates
change on a weekly basls as determined by the lender.
The interest rate as of June 30, 2016 was 0.42%.

Series of 20710 D, maturing through February 2024, with
interest ot variable rates payable monthly. Interest rates
change on a weekly basis as determined by the lender.
The interest rate as of June 30, 2016 was 0.42%.

Serles of 2010 F, maturing through February 2024, with
interest at variable rates payable monthly. Interest rates
change on a weekly basis as deférmined by the lender.
The interest rate as of June 30, 2016 was 0.42%.

Series of 2010 H, maturing through February 2030, with
interest at variable rates payable monthly. Interest rates
change on a weekly basis as determined by the lender.
The interest rate as of June 30, 2016 was 0.43%.

Series of 2011 AA, maturing through February 2028,

bearing interest ranging from 2.00% 1o 4.00%, interest
payable semi-annucily in February and August.
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21,475,000

27,030,000

3,280,000

2,400,000

2,300,000

1,200,000

21,245,000
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LONG-TERM DEBT (cont'd)

Series of 2011 A QSCB, requiring sinking fund deposits
through March 2030, bearing Interest of 5,088%, interest
payable semi-annually in March and September.

Setles of 2012, maturing through February 2028, bearing

interest ranging from 2.00% to 3.50%, interest payable
semi-annually in February and August.

Constfruction Loan

Note payable maturing through March 2027, with interest
at a fixed rate of 2.75%.

TOTAL NOTES

TOTAL BONDS AND NOTES

891,000

9,645,000

3,245,000

100,116,000

$184,858,004

Annual debt service requirements to maturity, including the mandatory sinking fund deposits, for

the bonds and notes are as follows:

Principal
Yeat Ending June 30, Maturities
2017 $ 7,530,464 $
2018 9,609,460
2019 11,394,460
2020 13,164,460
2021 13,599,460
2022-2026 71,552,305
2027-2031 53,117,925
179,968,534
Sinking fund deposlts 4,889,470
TOTAL $184,858,004 $

Advance Refunding

Interest

Maturities

8,897,796
7,430,429
7,090,746
6,694,986
6,196,334
22,960,787

7,088,065

66,359,143

66,359,143

Total
Maturities

$ 16,428,260
17,039,889
18,485,206
19,859,444
19,795,794
94,513,092
60,205,990

246,327,677
4,889,470

$251,217,147

Certain outsianding general obligation bonds of the District have been defeased by placing the
proceeds of refunding bonds into an irevocable escrow acceount held and managed by bank
trustees and invested in U.S, Treasury obligations, the principdl and interest on which would
provide amounts suificlent to pay the principal and interest on the defeased bonds in
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LONG-TERM DEBT (cont'd)

accordance with the schedule of remaining paymenis due. Accordingly, the escrow account
and the defeased bonds are not included in the District's financlal statements. At June 30, 2016,
$49,125,000 of bonds outstanding are considered defeased.

During the year ended June 30, 2016, the District issued a $34,550,000 general obligation bond
for the purpose of advance refunding all of Series A of 2008, advance refunding a portion of
Series of 2009, and paying the costs and expenses associated with issuing the bonds. The
amounts advance refunded, $24,955,000 for Series A of 2008 and $10,650,000 of Series of 2009
are considered defeased and included in the defeased amount in the preceding paragraph.
The District realized a total savings of $1,598,222, with a net present value savings (economic
gain) of $1,525,736.

Tax Revenue Anticipation Note

During the year ended June 30, 20146, the District approved the issuance of a Tax Revenue
Anticipation Note. The issuance of this note was needed fo cover a projected cash flow deficit as
a result of the State of Pennsyivania's budget impasse. The District authorized a note of
$50,000,000 but only utilized $1,000,000; the entire amount issued was paid off during the year
ended June 30, 20146,

FUND BALANCES

As of June 30, 2014, fund balances are composed of the following:

Capital Capiltal Debt Other Total
General Reserve Projects Service Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
Nonspendable:
Inventory $ 239,496 § - § -9 - § 13,117 § 252,613
Prepaid expenditure 51,746 - - - - 51,746
Restricted:
Capital projects - - 29,169 - - 29,169
Debt service - - - - 5,578,212 - 5,578,212
Committed:
Debt service 2,300,000 - - - - 2,300,000
Healthcare costs 2,100,000 - - - - 2,100,000
Assigned:
2016-2017 budgst 15,165,332 - - - 15,165,332
Capital projects - 1,080,190 - - “ 1,080,190
Student activities - - - - 303,550 303,550
Unassigned 11,490,717 - - - - 11,490,717

TOTAL FUND BALANCES $31,347,291 $1,080,190 § 29,169 $5,578,212 § 316,667 § 38,351,529
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PENSION PLAN

Plan Description

The District contributes to the Public School Employees’ Refirement System ['PSERS"), a
governmental cost-sharing mulliple-employer defined benefit pension plan that provides
retirement benefits fo public school employees of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The
members eligible fo parficipate in the system include all full-time public school employees, part-
time houtly public school employees who render af least 500 hours of service Iin the school year,
and par-time per diem public school employees who render at least 80 days of service In the
school year in any of the reporting entfities in Pennsylvania. PSERS issues a publicly available
comprehensive annual financial report that includes the financial statements and required
supplementary information for the plan. A copy of this report may be obtained by writing to the
Public School Employees’ Retirement System, P.O. Box 125, Hairisburg, Pennsylvania, 17108-0125,
or by visiting the PSERS website al www.psers.state.pa.us.

Benefits Provided

PSERS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Members are eligible for monthly
retirement benefits upon reaching (a) age 62, with at least one year of credited service, (b) age
60 with 30 or mare years of credited service, or (¢) 35 or more yedars of service regardless of age.
Act 120 of 2010 {"Act 120"} preserves the benefits of existing members and introduced benefit
reductions for individuals who became new members on or after July 1, 2011, Act 120 created
two new membership classes, Membership Class TE (“Class T-E"}, and Membership Class T-F
("Class T-F"). To qualify for normal retirement, Class T-E and Class T-F members must work untll age
65 with a minimum of three yeatrs of setvice, or attain a total combination and age and sefvice
that is equal to or greater than 92, with a minimum of 35 years of service.

Benefits are generally equal to two percent or two and one-hcif percent, depending upon the
membership class, of the memioer's findl averqge salary as defined in the Code, multiplied by the
number of years of credited service. For members whose membership started prior to July 1,
2011, after completion of five years of service, a member's right to the defined benefits Is vested
and early retirement may be elected. For Class T-E and Class T-F members, the right to benefits is
vested after 10 years of service,

Participants are eligible for disability retirement benefits after completion of five years of credited
service. Such benefits are generally equal io two peicent or two and one-half percent,
depending upon the membership class, of the member’s final average salary as defined in the
Code, mulfiplied by the number of yedars of credlied service, but not less than one-third of such
salary not greater than the benefit the member would have had at normal retirement age.
Members over nomal retirement age may apply for disability benefits.
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Death benefits are payable upon the death of an active member who has reached age 62 with
at least one year of credited service (age 65 with at least three years of credited service for Class
T-E and Class T-F members, or who has at least five years of credited service for Class T-E and
Class T-F members). Such benefits are actuarially equivalent fo the benefit that would have been
effective if the member had retired on the day before death.

Member Contributions

Active members who joined the system prior fo July 22, 1983 contributed af 5.25 percent
(Membership Class T-C), or at 6.50 percent (Membership Class T-D) of the member’s qualifylng
compensation.

Members who joined the system on or after July 22, 1983, and who were active or inactive as of
July 1, 2001, contribute at 6.25 percent (Membership Class T-C), or at 7.50 petcent (Membership
Class T-D) of the member's qualifying compensation.

Members who joined the system after June 30, 2001 and before July 1, 2011 contribute at 7.50
percent (automatic Membership Class T-D). For all new hires and for members who elected Class
T-D membership, the higher contribution rates began with service rendered on or after January 1,
2002.

Members who jolned the system after June 30, 2011 automatically contribute at the Membetship
Class T-E rafe of 7.50 percent (base rate} of the member's qualifying compensafion. All new hires
after June 30, 2011 who eleci Class T-F membership contribute ot 10.30 percent (base rate) of the
member's qualifying compensation. Membership Class T-E and T-F are affected by o “shared risk”
provision in Act 120 that In future fiscal years could cause the Membership Class T-E conidribution
rate to fluctuate between 7.50 percent and 9.50 percent, and Membership Class T-F contribution
rate to fluciuate between 10.30 percent and 12.30 percent.

Employer Contributions

The District's contractually required annual contribution is based on an aciuarially determined
amount that, when combined with the employee contributions, is expected 1o finance the costs
of benefits earned by employees duting the year, with an additional amount to finance any
unfunded accrued liabilty. For the year ended June 30, 2016, the rate of the empioyer
contribution was 25.84 percent of covered payroll, which was comprised of 25.00 percent for
pension confributions and 0.84 percent for healthcare premium assistance. The District's
contribution to PSERS for the year ended June 30, 2016 was 527,098,924. The Library’s
contributfion to PSERS for the year ended June 30, 2016 was $365,951.
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Pension Liabilily and Expense, and Deferred Outilows and Inflows of Resources

Al June 30, 2014, the District and the Library reported o total liability of $346,219,000 for ifs
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June
30, 2015, and the total pension liability used to calculaie the nef pension liability was determined
by rolling forward the system’s total pension licbility as of June 30, 2014 fo June 30, 2015. The
District's proportion of the net pension liability was calculated utilizing the employer’s one-year
reported covered payroll as it relates to the total one-year reported covered payroll. At June 30,
2015, the District's and Library’s proportion was 0.7993 percent, which was a decrease of 0.0267
percent from its proporion measured as of June 30, 2014,

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the District and the Library recognized pension expense of
$24,029,164. At June 30, 2016, the District and the Library reported deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Quiflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Net difference between projected and
actual investment eamings $ - $ 701,000
Diffetence betlween expected and actual experience - 1,429,000
Changes in proportions - 21,378,000
Difference between employer contributions and
proportionate share of total contributions 626,284 -
Other - 20,292
Contributions subsequent to the date of measurement 26,572,054 -

$27,198,338 $23,528,292

An amount of $26,572,054 is reported as deferred outflows of resources resulting from the District's
and the Library's contributions subsequent to the measurement date and will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2017. Other amounis will be
reported as defetred outflows and resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions, and will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended June 30,

2017 $ (7,950,629)
2018 (7,950,629)
2018 (7.950,629)
2020 941,474
2021 8,405

$ 22,902,008
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Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability as of June 30, 2016 was determined by rolling forward the system’s total
pension liability as of the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuation o June 30, 2015 using ihe following
actudrial assumpptions, applied to dll periods included in the measurement:

Actuarial cost method — Entry age normal, level percentage of pay.

Investment return — 7.50 percent, including inflation of 3.00 percent.

Salary increases — Effective average of 5.50 percent, which reflects an allowance for inflation
of 3.00 percent, real wage growth of 1.00 percent, and merit or seniority increases of 1.50
percent.

» Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Annuitant Tables (male and
female) with age set back three years for both males and females. For disabled annuitants,
the RP-2000 Combined Disabled Tables (male and female) with age set back seven years for
males and three years for females.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014 valuation were based on the experience
study that was performed for the five-year period ended June 30, 2010. The recommended
assumption changes based on this experience study were adopted by the PSERS Board of
Directors at its March 11, 2011 Board meeting and wete effective beginning with the June 30,
2011 actuarial valuation.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan Investments was determined using the
building-block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of penslon plan Investment expense and inflation) are developed for sach
major asset class. These ranges dare combined to produce the long-term expecied rate of return
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage
and by adding expecied inflation.

The pension plan's policy in regard to the allocation of invested plan assets is established and
may be amended by the PSERS Board of Directors. Plan assels are mandaged with a leng-term
objective of achieving and mainicining a fully funded status for the benefits provided through the
pension.

A schedule of plan investments by asset class, farget allocations, and long-term expected real
rate of return is as follows:

Long-term
Target Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Public markets global equity 22.5% 4.8%
Private markets {equity) 15.0% 6.6%
Private real estate 12.0% 4.5%
Global fixed income 7.5% 2.4%
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Long-term

Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Refumn
U.S. long treasuries 3.0% 1.4%
TIPS 12.0% 1.1%
High vield bonds 6.0% 3.3%
Cash 3.0% 0.7%
Absolute return 10.0% 4.9%
Risk parity 10.0% 3.7%
MLPs/infrastructure 5.0% 5.2%
Commodities 8.0% 3.1%
Financing (LIBOR) (14.0%) 1.1%

100.00%

The above was the PSERS Board’s adopted asset allocation policy and best estimaies of
geometric real rates of retumn for each major asset class as of June 30, 2015.

Discount Rate

The discount used fo measure the total pension liability was 7.50 percent. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be
made at the current coniribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at
contractually required rates which are actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the
pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future
benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected bensfit payments fo determine
the total pension liability.

Senslitivity of the District's and Likbrary’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes

In_the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability, calculated using the discount rate of 7.50 percent,
as well as what the net pension liability would be If it were calculated using a discount rate that is
one percentage point lower (6.50 percent) or one percentage point higher (8.50 percent) than
the current rate.

1% Current Rate 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
6.50% 7.50% 8.50%
District's and Library’s proportionate
share of the net pension fiability $426,749,000 $346,219,000 $278,534,000
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OPERATING LEASES

The District executed a lease in Januaty 2015 with an effective date of August 2015 for bullding
space. This lease is considered an operating lease for accounting purposes. The following is a
summary of the minimum rental payments for the remaining term at June 30, 2016:

Yedr Ending June 30,

2017 $ 620,955
2018 : 620,955
2019 620,955
2020 620,955
2021 51,746

§ 2,535,566

JOINT VENTURE

The District Is a participating member of the Lehigh Carbon Community College (“the College”).
The College is governed by a Board of Trustees composed of representatives from each ofthe 13
member school districts and two at-large representatives. A vote of two-thirds of all member
school districts is required for approval of the College's annual operating and debt service
budget. Each member school district pays a share of the operating costs of the College based
on a five-year average of student membership from each school district. Each member school
district also pays a share of the debt service budget of the College based upon the 2005 market
valuation as certified by the Pennsylvania State Tax Equalization Board. The financial statements
of the College are avallable from the College business office located at 4526 Education Park
Drive, Schnecksville, PA 18078-2598. For the year ended June 30, 2016, the District's share of the
operating and debt service budget was $1,508,980.,

POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN

Plan Description

The District adheres to GASB Statement No. 45, “Accounting and Financial Repotrting by Employers
for Post-employment Benefits Other Than Pensions," for certain post-employment healthcare
benefits and life insurance benefits provided by the District. This statement generally provides for
prospective implementation - that Is, that employers set the beginning net OPEB obligation at zero
as of the beginning of the initial year. Accordingly, for financial reporfing purposes, no liability is
reported for the post-employment benefits liability ot the date of fransition.

-51-



NOTE 12

ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN [cont'd)

The District's post-employment healthcare plan is a single-employer defined benefit healthcare
plan. The plan provides medical insurance benefits to eligible refirees and their spouses. The
Board of School Directors assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions. The
plan does not issue any financial report and is not included in the report of any public employee
retirement system or any other entity.

Funding Policy

The contribution requirements of plan members are established and may be amended by the
Board of School Directors. The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go
financing requirements, with any additional amount to prefund as determined annually by the
Board of School Directors. For fiscal year 2016, the District contributed $270,915 to the plan for
current premiums, or approximately 18 percent of total premiums. Plan members receiving
benefits contributed §1,213,765, or approximately 82 percent of total premiums, through their
required monthly contributions.

Annuadl OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The District's annual other post-employment benefit cost (expense) is calculated based on the
annual required contribution ("ARC" of the employer, an amount actuarially defermined in
accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represenis a level of
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and
amertize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30
years. The following table shows the components of the District's OPEB cost for the year, the
amount actually contribuled to the plan, and changes in the District's net OPEB obiligation to the
plan.

Annual required contribution $ 1,303,632
Interest on net OPEB obligation 276,946
Adjustment to annual required contribution (377,823)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 1,202,755
Contributions made (1,022,968)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 179,787
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 6,154,328
Net OPEB obligation - end of year § 6,334,115
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NOTE 12

ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN (cont'd)

Funded Status and Funding Progress

The schedule of funding progress of OPEB is as follows:

Actuarial
Accrued UAAL as a
Actuarial Licbillty Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial  Value of (AAL) - AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Raiio Payroll Payroll
Date (@) (o) (b-q) (o/b) (c) f(b-a)/c]

6/30/2015 $ - $11,890,193 $11,890,193 0.00% $100,546,736 14.98%
6/30/2013 $ - §14,031,452 514,031,452 0.00% $ 93,691,068 14.98%
6/30/2011 $§ - §11,988,051 $11,988,051 0.00% § 97,668,932 12.27%

Actuarial valuations of an ongeing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
dssumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and hecithcare cost trends. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expeciations
and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented on
the previous page, presenis information about whether the actuarial vatue of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the
plan as understood by the employer and the plan members), and include the types of benefits
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs
between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions
used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatfility in
actuarial liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of
the calculations,

In the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation, the entry age actuarial cost method was used. The
actuarlal assumptions included a 4.50 petcent investment rate of return and an annual
healthcare cost frend rate of six percent in 2015 and 5.5 percent in 2016 through 2020. Raies
gradually decrease from 5.4 percent in 2021 to 3.8 percent In 2075 and later. The UAAL is belng
amortized based on the level dollar, 30-year open period. The remaining amoirtization period ai
June 30, 2016 was 21 years.
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NOTE 13

NOTE 14

NOTE 15

ALLENTOWN SCHOQOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Government Grants and Awards

The District participates in both state and federally assisted grant programs. These programs are
subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The District Is
potentiaily liable for any expenditures which may be disallowed pursuant to the terms of these
grant programs. Management is not aware of any material items of noncompliance which would
result in the disallowance of program expenditures,

Litigation
Certain litigation claims are pending against the District. In the opinion of District management

and legal counsel, the potential losses, if any, on such claims would not have o matericily
adverse sffect on the Distriict's finances.

EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

The following general fund functions Incurred expenditures In excess of appropriations in the
following amounts for the year ended June 30, 2016;

Regular programs, elementary/secondary $ ©,335933
Special programs, elementary/secondory $ 5,753,310
Nonpublic school programs $ 90,527
Pupil personnel $ 1,251,669
Administration $ 550,926
Pupll health $ 1,870,688
Student activities 8 168,400

The excess of expenditures over qppfopricn‘ions wdas financed with current year savings in other
budget appropriation fine items, transfers from the food service fund, and revenues in excess of
anticipated amounts.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed fo various risks of loss related to foris; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omisslons; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. Significant losses are
covered by commercial insurance for all major programs except for worker's compensation, for
which the District retains risk of loss. For insured programs, there were no significant reductions in
insurance coverage during the 2015-2016 year. Seftlement amounts have not exceeded
Insurance coverage for the current year or the three prior years.
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NOTE 16

NOTE 17

NOTE 18

ALLENTOWN SCHOOIL. DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The District has various transactions with Allentown Public Library, which are related because of a
common board of directors. The Library received a substantial portion of its support from the
District during the year ended June 30, 2016. The District also provides certain general and
administrative services to the Library. As of June 30, 20146, the Library owed the District $51,595
related to their portion of retirement expenses paid by the Disiricl, while the District owed the
Library $280,757 for the Library's portion of the state retirement and social securily subsidies. The
net of these two transactions resulfs in the District owing the Library $229,162.

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT COMMITMENTS

As of June 30, 2014, the District is committed to various capital projects. Anticipated project
commitments are as follows:

Estimated
Contract Construction-  Completed at Balance to
Armount in-progress 06/30/2016 Complete
Capital projects § 783,767 § 682,602 § - 8 101,165

In addition, the District has incurred costs in the amount of $51,850 for other projects that were
not under a formal construction commiiment as of June 30, 2016.

DERIVATION INSTRUMENTS

On April 28, 2009 and April 28, 2010, the District entered into floating-for-fixed rate SWAPs (the
"SWAPs") with Goldman Sachs Capltal Markets, L.P. (“Goldman”) that relate to $34,750,000 and
$34,750,000 of the District’s General Obligation Notes, 2009 and 2070 Series ("Relafed Notes"),
respectively. The SWAPs are structured with d declining notionadl (principal) amount which will
mirror the principal amoertization of the Related Notes, thus creating a “synthetic fixed raje” liability
for the District.

As of June 30, 2016, the District determined that the SWAPs listed as investment derivalive
instruments under governmental activities met the criteria for sffectiveness using the quantitative
method. The District has reporied a Peferred Oulflow - Inferest Rate SWAP and Deferred Inflow -
Derivative Instrument Interest Rate SWAP of §14,517,785 as of June 30, 2016, o decrease of
$1,747,496 in fair value from the previous year.
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NOTE 18

ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DERIVATION INSTRUMENTS (cont'd)

The terms, fair value, and Goldman credit ratings of the SWAP as of June 30, 20146 are as follows:

Goldman

Notional Effective  Variable Rate Fixed Rate Fair Termination Credit

Related Noies Amount Date Received Paid Value* Date Ratings
Series 2009 $34,750,000  04/01/09 67% IMLIBCR 3.962% $(6,696,168) 02/01/2031 ATIA-IA
Series 2010 $34,750,000 04/01M10 67% 1MLIBOR 4.003% $(7,821,617) 02/01/2030 ANA-IA

* Fair value from the District's perspective; positive values represent amounts in the District's favor, and negative
amounts represent amounts in the counterparty's favor. These values are estimates, are based on mid-market
quotations, and do not represent actual prices to unwind. These measurements are categorized as Level lll on the
investment valuation hierarchy.

= Counterparly Risk
— Risk that the counterparty cannot make future payments or cannot make termination
payment due to the District. Risk is reduced by selecting highly-rated counterparty and by
ISDA (Internctional SWAPs and Derivatives Association") contract terms addressing
collateral limits and credit ratings.

= Basis Risk
— Risk that the payment obligation on the Disttict's leg of the SWAP or on its underlying bonds
(the SIFMA index) will exceed the SWAP receipt (the percentage of LIBOR, plus a spread
when dpplicable) due to a macro change in tax-exempt market or to d tax change
event,

s  Tax Risk
— A form of basis risk - risk of higher tax-exempt interest rates (an increase in SIFMA Index) if
tax low changes lower the taxation rate on interest income. In the extreme scenario, if
change In tax law elimingted tax-exempt status, the market would adjust “tax-exempt”
securily pricing so that there would be no material difference between the SIFMA Index
and LIBOR.

» Credil Risk
— Credit deterloration of the undetlying bonds would result in basis risk discussed above
when underiying bonds are in a variable rate mode.

»  Termination Risk
— Risk that the SWAP would be terminated ot o time when prevailing market conditions
resulted in a termingtion payment owed fo the SWAP provider.

=  Rollover Risk

— Risk of extension if the SWAP term is less than the debt term and the District desires to
extend the SWAP.
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NOTE 19

NOTE 20

ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFICIT NET POSITION

For governmental activities and business-type activiiies (food setvice fund), the unrestricted net
deficit amounts of $303,328,989 and $6,685,507, respectively, includes the effect of the deferring
the recognition of pansion contributions made subsequent to the measurement date of the netf
pension ligbility, the unamortized portion of coniributions made in excess of the District's share of
its proportionate contibutions to its pension plan, and the deferied ouiflows resulting from the
change in the District’s share of the net pension liability. This is offset by the District’'s actuarially
determined pension liakility and the deferred inflows resulting from the differences between
projected and actual investment eamings and expected and actual experience.

Discretely Presenied Component Unit

For governmental activiiies, the unrestricted net deficit amount of $2,210,248 includes the effect
of the deferring the recognition of pension contributions made subsequent to the measurement
date of the net pension liability, the unamortized portion of confributions made in excess of the
Library’s share of its propertionate contributions to its pension plan, and the deferred outflows
resulting from the change in the Library's share of the net pension liability. This is offset by the
Library's actuarially determined pension liability and the deferred inflows resulting from the
differences between piojected and actual investment eamings expected and actual
experience.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The District has evaluated oll subsequent events through January 30, 2017, the date the financial
statements were available o be issued.
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ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S AND LIBRARY'S PROPORTIONATE
SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

Measurement Date

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014

District's and Library's proportion of the net pension liability 0.7993% 0.8260%
District's and Library's proportion of the net pension liability -

dellar value $346,219,000 $326,936,000
District's and Library's covered employee payroll $100,546,278 $105,406,602
District's and Library's proportionate share of the net pension

liability as a percentage of its covered

employee payroll 344.34% 310.17%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total

pension liability 54.36% 57.24%

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 68, this schedule has been prepared prospectively as the above
information for the preceding years is not readily available. This schedule will accumulate each year until
sufficient information to present a ten-year trend is available.
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ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT AND LIBRARY CONTRIBUTIONS

June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015
Contractually required contribution $ 26,572,054 $ 20,611,987
Contributions in relation to the contractually
required contribution 26,572,054 20,611,987
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ -
District's and Library's covered-employee payroll $106,288,216 $100,546,278
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee
payroll 25.00% 20.50%

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 68, this schedule has been prepared prospectively as the above
information for the preceding years is not readily available. This schedule will accumulate each year until
sufficient information to present a ten-year trend is available.
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ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING EALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2016

Special Revenue Funds

Athletic JBC Playground
Fund Fund Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 56,669 $ 208,088 $ 63,933
Inventory - 13,117 -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 56,669 $ 222205 § 63,933
LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
LIABILITIES:
Due o other funds $ 2,343 $ 23,797 5 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,343 23,797 -
FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable - 13,117 -
Assigned 54,326 185,291 63,933
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 54,326 198,408 63,833

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 56,669 $ 222205 $ 63933

40 -

$

Totals

329,650

13,117

342,807

26,140

26,140

13,117
303,550

316,667

342,807



ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Special Revenue Funds

Athletic JBC Playground
Fund Fund Fund Totals

REVENUES :
l.ocal sources $ 28201 $ 83,329 $ 6,528 $ 118,058

- 3,901 - 3,801
TOTAL REVENUES 28,201 87,230 6,528 121,959
EXPENDITURES
Operation of noninstructional services 14,747 45,882 - 60,629
TOCTAL EXPENDITURES 14,747 45,882 - 60,629
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES 13,454 41,348 6,528 61,330
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in 30,000 - - 30,000
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 30,000 - - 30,000
NET CHANGE [N FUND BALANCES 43,454 41,348 6,528 91,330
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 10,872 157.060 57,405 225,337

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 54,326 $ 198,408 $ 63933 $ 316,667
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Barbacane, Thornton & Company LLP
200 Springer Building
3411 Silverside Road
‘Wilraington, Delaware 19810

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL oy
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON wwwbtcpa.com

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

January 30, 2017

Board of School Directors
Allentown School Dishrict
Allentown, Pennsylvanid

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United Sictes of
America and the standards applicable fo financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standarcls
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmenicat
activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each maijor fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund Information of the Allentown School District (“the Districi™) as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
Distict's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 30, 2017.

Internal Control Over Fihancial Reporting

in planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s infernat
control over financial reporting (“intemal contral”) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate
in the clrcumstances for the purpose of expressing our oplnions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internai coniral. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Distiict's internal control.

A deficiency in infernal confrof exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, fo prevent, or
detect and comect, misstatements on a timely basls. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencles, In internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the District's financial statements will not be prevenied, or detected and corrected, ona
fimely basls. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencles, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough o merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in infernal control that might be material
weaknesses of significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may

BARBACANE
THORNION
&COMPANY

47 CERTIFLED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS



Board of School Directors
Allentown School District

exist that were not identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
recommendations, we identified a deficiency in internal control that we consider o be a material
weakness. We consider the deficiency listed as item #2013-001 described In the accompanying
schedule of findings and recommendations to be a material weakness.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

The resulis of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Audifing Standards.

Allentown School District’s Responses to the Finding

The Allentown School District's response fo the finding identified by our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and recommendations. We did not audit the Allentown School
District's response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on I.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is sclely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's infernal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's intemal ceontrol and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Onlncan Tieton § s, LLP

BARBACANE, THORNTON & COMPANY LLP
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Barbacane, Thotnton & Company LLP
200 Springer Building
3411 Silverside Road
Wilmington, Delaware 19810
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S

REPCRT ON COMPLIANCE FOR FACH }j gggjggfgg?
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL v, btepa.com
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY
THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

January 30, 2017

Board of School Directors
Allentown School District
Allentown, Pennsylvania

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the Allentown School District's (“the District”) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements descitved in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and matericl effect
on ecch of the District's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2016. The Distict's major
federal programs aie identified in the summary of audiior's resulis section of the accompanying scheduls
of findings and recommendations.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, contracts, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable fo its federal programs.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is 1o express an oplhion on compliance for each of the District's major federal programs
based on our qudit of the types of compliance requiremenis refetred fo above. We conducted our audit
of compliance in dccordance with auditing standcirds generally accepted in the United States of America;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Compiroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrafive Requiremenis, Cost Principles, and Audif Requirements for
Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance™). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan
and perform the audit to cbtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and maierial effect on o major
federal program occurted. An oudit Includes examining, on a test basls, evidence about the District’s
compllance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the clicumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reascnable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program, However, our audif does not provide o legal determination of the District’s compliance.

BARBACANE
THORNION
&COMPANY

- 64 - CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS



Board of School Directors
Allenfown School District

Opinion on Each Maijor Federal Program
In our opinion, the District compiied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance reguirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal program for

the year ended June 30, 2016.

Repott on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal conirol over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing
our audit of compliance, we considered the District's internal control over compliance with the fypes of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determmine
the auditing procedures that are appropricte In the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of infernal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectivenass of the Disfrict's infemal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a coniro] over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing thelr assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement ofa
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencles, in internal control over compfiance such that there is o
reasonable possibility that matetial noncompliance with a fype of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or defected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal confrol over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencles, In infernal contro! over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that Is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this secfion and was not designed to identify all deficiencles in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficlencies in intemal control over compliance that we consider to be materlal weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely fo describe the scope of our testing

of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing lbased on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report Is not suitable for any other purpose.

Onbocasnss it § Crporcy LLP

BARBACANE, THORNTON & COMPANY LLP
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ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

PART A - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued [unmodified, qualified, adverse, or disclaimer]:

Unmodiified

Infernal control over financial reporiing:

+  Material weakness(es) identified?

* Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

* Noncomplicance material to financial
statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs;
+ - Material weakness(es) ideniified?
o  Significant deficlency(les) identified?

X _Yes No
Yes X None reported
_ Yes X _ No
Yes X _No
Yes X__ None reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs [unmodified, qualified, adverse, or

disclaimer}:

Unmodified

Any audii findings disclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance
with the Uniform Guidance?

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Numbers

84.027, 84173
10.553, 10.555, 10.556, 10.559
84.367

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Yes X __No

Name of Federal Program or Clustfer

Special Education Cluster
Child Nutrfion Cluster
Titie Il Improving Teacher Quality State Grants

$ 849,346

Yes X No

- 86 -



ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS5 AND RECOMMENDATIONS

PART B - FINDINGS RELATED TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATUS OF PRICR YEAR FINDINGS

2013-001

GENERAL FUND BUDGET

Condition

In reviewing the budget, we noted a number of areas in which the budget does not appear to represent
current activity levels of the District. For instance, the total instruction function was budgeted at $146.3
million, and actual expenditures in 2012-2013 were $158.9 million. The total support services funclion was
budgeted at $69.6 million, and actual expenditures in 2012-2013 were $60.8 million.

Criteria

The fundamental purpose of budgetary control is to plan beforehand for the operations of the District and
then maintain the operations according 1o the plan.

Effect

Budgetary comparisons fo actual results stimulate the early identification of operational problems and
help ensure that timely decisions are made resolving the problems, resulting in better coordination and
control of business efforts and in more effective use of the District’s resources.

Cause

The Disfrict did not amend its budget during the year to account for changes in planned spending.

Recommendation

We recommended that the District amend its budget during the year so that the budget more accurately
reflects the actual spending of the District.

Status

Buring our current year audit, we noted that the budget still does not provide a realistic representation of
activity ievels of the District. There continues 1o be sighificant variances when budgeted figures are
compared to actual amounts. This finding Is still applicable for the current year.
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ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRIC;t‘
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS {cont'd)

CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

None.

PART C - FINDINGS RELATED TO FEDERAL AWARDS

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

None.

CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

None.
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Ol Allentown
wSCHOOL DISTRICT

31 South Pern Street # PO, Box 328 « AHemtown, PA 18105
Adminisuntion Center = 484-765.4272 « Fax: 484-765-4025

January 25, 2017

Barbacane, Thornton & Company LLP

Response to Status of Prior Year Finding:

The AHentewn School District presents the status of the current budget to the full Beard at
the Finance Committee and School Board meetings monthly. At these meetings, budget
transfers are presented, reviewed, and approved by the Board for execution by the
Administration. The action taken does not change the total budget, but instead, provides
preper accounting of the expenditures and provides the Board involvement in the precedure
which aligns actual expenditures to the anticipated budgeted amounts.

Budget practices have been changed to provide greater acewracy in the estimation of actual
budgets, but these approved transfers will continue to reflect the changes in expenditures
from the approved budget due to changes in expenditure patterns. In recent years, internal
reorganization, major constriction in staff, and federal and state funding adjustments after
Budget approval by the Board have led to these major differences and will continue to be a
factor. Staff hasbeen reviewing the general ledger classifications of the budget against actual
revenues/expenditures to provide a better comparison and reduce the variances being
generated. The Budget process has been further defined and the most current data is being
utilized to improve the accuracy in the future.

Respectfully,
,4’

William R, Gretton Il
Acting Business Administrator

An Equal Opportunity Employer
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ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Accrued Accrued
Federal Program Total (Unearned) {Unearned)
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Source  CFDA Pass-Through Grant Period ar Award Received Revenue Revenue Revenue Through to
Grantor/Program or Cluster Tifle Code  Number Grantors Number Beginning - Ending Amoaunt for Year 07/01/15 Recognized Expenditures 06/30/18 Subrecipients
1.5, Department of Education
High School Graduation Initiative D 84,360A S360A100174 10/01/14-09/30/15 $ 2,347,203 $ 1,254,140 § 273341 $ 980,788 $ 980,798 $ - $ -
Total CFDA #84.360A 1,254,140 273,341 980,789 580,799 - -
Passed through PA State Systern of Higher
Education
Gaining Early Awareness and Readiness
for Undergraduate Programs | B4.334  2015-GEARUP3-ASD-01 04/15/15-09/24/15 740,138 147,823 55,207 103,331 103,331 10,805 -
Gaining Early Awareness and Readiness - -
for Undergraduate Programs | 84,334  2018-GEARUP3-ASD-02  09/25/15-09/24/16 745,479 167,815 - 466,988 456,988 289,173 -
Total CFDA #84.334 315,638 55,297 560,319 560,319 298,878 -
Passed through PA Department of Education
Title [ Grants to Local Education Agencies | 84.010 013-150007 07/21/14-08/30/16 8,257,005 2,681,133 1,406,282 1,274,841 1,274,841 - -
Title | Grants to Local Education Agencies | 84,010 013-1600607 07/01/15-09/30/17 9,743,923 7,268,561 - 9,279,878 9,279,878 2,010,815 -
Title | Grants to Local Education Agencies | 84.010 042-140007 07/16/14-05/30/15 428,194 286,916 (2,882) 259,798 259,798 - -
Tile [ Grants to Local Education Agencies | 84.010 042-150007 06/05/15-08/30/16 428,918 268,698 - 188,828 188,828 (72,871} -
Title | Reward School Grant | 84.010 077-150007 03/11/15-09/30/15 50,000 28,571 28,682 2 9 - -
Total CFDA #34.010 10,504,280 1,431,972 11,003,352 11,003,352 1,931,044 -~
Twenty-First Century Community Leaming Ctrs | 84.287 4100058675 10/01/14-09/30/15 390,000 198,008 93,667 104,338 104,339 - -
Twenty-First Cenfury Community Leaming Cirs ! 84,267 4100068046 10/01/15-08/30/16 399,000 177,130 - 303,015 303,015 125,885 -
Twenty-First Century Community Learning Cirs | 84.287 4100071616 01/01/16-12/31116 399,000 17,696 - 88,758 88,758 71.062 -
Total CFDA #84.287 392,832 93,867 486,112 486,112 196,947 -
English Language Acquisition Grants 1 84.365 010-150007 07/01/14-02/30/16 535,217 392,492 148,185 244,307 244 307 - -
English Language Acquisition Granis 1 84.365 010-160067 07/01/15-08/30/17 538,244 358,829 - 380,704 380,704 21,875 -
Total CFDA #84.365 751,321 148,185 525,011 525,011 21,875 -
Mathematics and Science Partnerships 1 84.366 075-1400C7 09/02/14-09/30M15 462,997 178,076 41,608 136,468 136,468 - -
Mathematics and Science Partnerships ! 84,366 075-150007 10/19/15-09/30/16 487,304 453,250 - 258,127 258,127 (195,123) -
Totat CFDA #84.366 631,326 41,608 394,585 394,595 (185,123) -
improving Teacher Quality State Grants 1 84 367 020-150007 07/01/14-08/30M& 1,002,217 265,996 265,996 - - - -
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 1 84.367 020-160007 07/01/15-08/30{/16 1,009,757 742,686 - 1,008,787 1,009,787 267,101 -
Total CFDA #84.367 1,008,682 265,696 1,008,787 1,008,787 267,101 -

Continued on next page.
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ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Accrued Accrued Amount
Federal Program Total {Unearned) (Unearned) Passed
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Source  CFDA Pass-Through Grant Perod or Award Received Revenue Revenue Revanue Through to
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Code  Number Grantor's Number Beginning - Ending Armount for Year 07/01M15 Recognized Expenditures 06/30/18 Subrecipients
U.5. Department of Education (cont'd)
Passed through Bucks County LU.
Education for Homeless Children and Youth 1 84.196 081-12-0403 10/01/14-09/30/15 125,000 72,917 50,194 22,723 22,723 - -
Education for Homeless Children and Youth | 24,198 081-12-0403 10/01/15-09/30/16 110,000 84,167 - 93,732 93,732 29,565 -
Total CFDA #84.196 137,084 50,194 116,455 116,455 28,685 -
Passed through Carbon Lehigh County 1.U.
Special Education Grant to States | 84,027 HOZ27A140093 07/01/14-08/30/15 2,822,293 2,822,293 2,822,293 - - - -
Special Education Grant to States ! 84.027 HO27A150093 07/01/15-09/30/18 2,682,495 - - 2,682,495 2,682 495 2,692,485 -
Total CFDA #84.027 2,822,293 2,822 293 2,692,495 2,692,405 2,692,485 -
Special Education Grant to States Sec §19

Amendment D | 84.173 H173A140080 07/01/14-06/30/15 23,837 25,837 23,837 - - - -
Special Education Grant to States Sec 619

Amendment D | 84.173 H173A150020 07/01/15-06/30/16 16,8158 - - 16,615 16,815 16,615 -

Total CFDA #84.173 23,837 23,837 16,815 16,5815 16,615 -
Race to the Top - Phase 3 | 84.413A B413A120004 07/01/12-D6/30/16 592,108 14,871 114,871 - - - -
Race io the Top - Phase 3 | B84.413A B413A120004 07/01/12-06/30/16 592,108 31,822 - 101,223 101,223 69,401 -
Totat! CFDA #84.413A 146,893 114,871 101,223 101,223 58,401 -
TOTAL L1.S. DEPARTMENT OF ERDUCATION 17,985,126 5,321,261 17,895,763 17,896,763 5,320,898 -
.S, Dept of Health and Human Services
Passed through PA Department of Education
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families [ 93.558 4100060248 O7/01/14-06/30/15 434,653 380,500 390,500 - - - -
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families l 93.558 4100060949 07/01/13-08/30/18 488,477 - - 485,056 485,056 485,056 -
Total CFDA #83.558 390,500 320,500 485,056 485,056 485,056 -
Prometing Adolescent Health through School-

Based HV/STD Prevention and Surveillance 1 93.079 1433054 08/01/11-07/3118 22,500 3,285 - 3,265 3,295 - -
Promoting Safe and Stable Families 1 93.556 4100057284 07/01/14-06/30/15 136,399 128,780 128,790 - - - -
Promating Safe and Stable Families 1 93.556 4100057284 Q7/01/15-06/30/16 136,398 - - 128,475 128,475 128,475 -

Total CFDA #93.556 128,780 128,790 128,475 128,475 128,475 -

Continued on next page.
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ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Accrued Accrued Amount
Federal Program Total (Unearnad) (Unearned) Passed
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Source CFDA Pass-Through Grant Period or Award Received Revenue Revenue Revenue Through o
Granter/Program or Cluster Title Code  Number Grantor's Number Beginning - Ending Armount for Year 07/01/15 Recognized  Expenditures 06/30/18 Subrecipients
LI.S. Dept of Hezkth and Human Services (cont'd)
Passed through PA Dept of Public Welfare
Community-based Child Abuse Prevention
Grants | 93,590 4100057284 07/01/14-06/30/15 2,043 1,929 1,929 - - - -
Community-based Child Abuse Prevention
Grants | 93,580 4100057284 07/01/15-06/30/15 2,043 - - 1,824 1,924 1,924 -
Total CFDA #93.590 1,828 1,929 1,824 1,824 1,824 -
Medical Assistance ACCESS -
Administrative Claiming Program 1 93.778 N/A 07/01/14-06/30/15 155,811 83,971 63,871 - - - -
Medical Assistance ACCESS -
Administrative Claiming Program 1 93.778 N/A 07/01/15-06/30/16 125,777 29,941 - 125,777 128,777 55,838 -
Total CFDA #93.778 93,912 83,971 125777 125,777 95,836 -
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 518,428 685,180 744,527 744,627 711,291 -
1).S. Department of Agriculture
Passed through PA Department of Agriculture
National School Lunch Program I 10.555 N/A Q7/01/14-06/30/15 N/A - (641) 641 641 - -
National School Lunch Pragram | 10.555 N/A D7/0115-08/30/16 N/A 688,869 - 684,670 684,870 (4,199) -
Passed through PA Depariment of Education
National School Lunch Program I 10.555 359/362 07/0M4-06/30/15 N/A 845284 945,284 - - - -
National School Lunch Program 1 10.555 358/362 07/04/15-06/30/16 N/A 5,696,526 - 8,807,617 6,907,617 1,211,082 -
Total CFDA #10.555 7,330,678 044,643 7,592,528 7,582,928 1,206,823 -
Schocl Breakfast Program | 10.553 365 07/01/14-06/30115 N/A 345 604 346,504 - - - -
School Breakfast Program | 10.553 365 07/01/15-06/30M16 N/A 1,308,485 - 1,594,104 1,594,104 285,609 -
Total CFDA #10.553 1,655,099 346,804 1,584,104 1,584,104 285,608 -
Specizl Milk Program for Children | 10.556 364 07/01/14-06/30/15 N/A 1,284 1,284 - - - -
Special Milk Program for Children [ 10.556 384 07/01/15-06/30/16 N/A& 1,711 - 2,007 2,007 295 -
Total CFDA #19.556 2,995 1,284 2,007 2,007 295 -
Child and Adult Care Food program 1 10.558 164 07/01/14-06/30/15 N/A 16,957 16,857 - - - -
Child and Aduit Care Food program 1 10.558 164 07/01115-06/30/16 N/A 108,001 - 134,107 134,107 26,106 -
Total CFDA #10.558 124,958 168,857 134,107 134,107 26,106 -

Continued on next page.
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ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Accrued Accrued Amount
Federal Program Total (Unearned) (Unearned) Passed
Federal Grantor/Fass-Through Source CFDA Pass-Through Grant Period or Award Received Revenug Revenus Revenue Through o
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Code  Number Grantor's Number Beginning - Ending Amount for Year 07/01/15 Recognized Expendifures 05/30/18 Subrecipients
U.S. Department of Agriculture {cont'd)
Passed through PA Depzariment of Education
Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Program [ 10.682 362 07/01/15-06/30/16 N/A 43,204 - 58,877 59,8977 18,773 -
Summer Fecod [ 10.559 164 07/01/14-06/30/15 N/A 19,59% 18,598 - - - -
Summer Food I 10.589 164 07/01/15-06/30/16 N/A 180,085 - 187,128 187,128 37,043 -
Total CFDA #10.559 169,684 19,598 187,128 187,128 37,043 -
TOTAL U.S. DEFARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 8,326,618 1,329,087 9,670,251 9,570,251 1,572,720 -
TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS $27,833,170 $7,235,538 $28,311,541 328,311,641 57,613,808 ] -
SPECIAL EDUCATION CLUSTER (IDEA) (CFDAs #84.027 and #84.173) $ 2,846,130 $2,8486,130 $ 2,709,110 $ 2,709,110 $2,708,110 $ -
CHILD NUTRITION CLUSTER (CFDAs #10.553, #10.555, #10.556, and 10.559) $§ 0,158,466 $1,312,13¢ $ 9,376,167 3 9,376,167 $ 1,528,841 3 -

Source Codes:

1 - Indirect Funding
D - Direct Funding
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NOTE A

NOTE B

NOIE C

NOTE D

NOTE E

ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOQTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

SCOPE OF THIS SCHEDULE

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards reflects federal expenditures for all
individual grants which were active during the fiscal year.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The District uses the modified accrual method of recording transactions except as noted for
the accounting of donated commodities in Note C. Revenues are recorded when
measurable and available. Expendiiures are recorded when incurred.

NONMONETARY FEDERAL AWARDS - DONATED COMMODITIES

The Commonwealih of Pennsylvania distibutes federal surplus food to instilutions (schools,
hospitals, and prisons) and fo the needy. Expenditures reported in the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards under CFDA #10.555 represent surplus food consumed by
the District during the 2015-2016 fiscal year. The District has food commedities totaling
$4,198 in inventory as of June 30, 2016.

ACCESS PROGRAM

The ACCESS Program is o medical assistance program that reimburses local educational
agencies for direct eligible health-related services provided to enrolled special needs
students. Relmbursements are federal source revenues but are classified as fee-for-service
and are not considered federal financial assistance. The amount of ACCESS funding
recognized for the year ended June 30, 2016 was $585,193.

ARRA PROGRAMS

The Qualified School Construction Bond Program ("QSCB") and Qualified Zone Academy
Program ("QZAB") were authorized through the American Recovery and Reinvestment Tax Act
("ARRA"). These ARRA-funded programs are not covered by the single audit requirements
and are not required to be included in the scheciule of expenditures of federal awards
("SEFA") or in the determination of major programs. Federal subsidy reimbursements related
to the @SCB and ©ZAB debt service payments are, therefore, not ¢considered federal
financial assistance as it relates to the SEFA. The fotal amount of federal subsidy
reimbursements raceived totaled $856,739 for the year ended June 30, 2016.
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NOTE F

ALLENTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

INDIRECT COST RATE

The District has not elected to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed
under the Uniform Guldance.
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